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The House resumed at 8:00 P,M,

Mr. Speaker in the Chair.

MR, SPEAKER: Order,please!

MP, NEAPY: A point of privilege.

¥R, SPEAKER: A point of privilege.

¥P. NEARY: Yes, Sir. A very grave and serious point of privilege,

Sir, T might add. Mr. Speaker, when the House rose at 6 o'clock I would like
to draw to Yomr Honour's attention and to the attention of the House that
the Minister of Tourism raced across the House after my colleague, the member

for Bellevue (¥r.Callan) -

MP. MOPGAN: After the House rose.

MR. NEAPY: After the House rose.

MR. MORGAN: That is not a point of privilege.

MR. NEARY: Oh, ves!

AN HON. MEMBER: No, no!

MR. RIDEQUT: Let us hear it.

MP. NEARY: Let us hear the point of privilege first.
MP. RIDEOUT: Let the Speaker decide. You are not the

Speaker yet. I know that, though.

MR. NEARY: I might refer Your Fonour to citations 109
and 110 of Beauchesne, by the way, in connection with the matter that I

am about to raise. And the hon. gentleman, Sir, harassed my colleague,
the member for Bellevue (Mr.Callan), insulted my colleague, threatemed him

and challenged the hon. gentleman to fight.

MR.W.N.POWE: Oh! A big joke, is 1t?

MR. NEARY: This is no joke, Mr. Speaker.

VP, SPEAKER: Order,please!

MR. NEARY: The members have the right of the protection

of the Chair of this House coming and going to this Fouse, whether hon.
gentleman are aware of it or not. And the most serious thing that happened,
Sir, was that the hon. gentleman called my hon. friemnd a punk. Now, Sir,
according to the dictiomary -

MP. SPEAKEP: A punk, is it?
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VP, NEAPY: A punk -p-u-n-k. According to the dictionary,

Sir, a punk means a youug hoodlum, a worthless person, a prostitute.

“P. LUNDRIGAN: It sounds like ycu.

MP, NFARY: I ask that the hon. gentleman withdraw that, Mr
Speaker.

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Oh, oh!

MR, SPEAKFP: Order,please! I must ask the hon. gentleman to

withdraw his former remark, the hon. member for Grand Falls (Mr.Lundrigan).
MR. LUNDPICAN: ¥r. Speaker, I hope that the rule is applied equally
when I do withdraw, as I do. What did I do, Your Honour, that I am suppose
to withdraw?

MP. SPEARER: Order,please! My understanding was that the

hon. gentleman's remarks were an indirect allegation against the hon.
gentleman to my right.

MR. LUNDRIGAN Mr. Speaker, if an indirect allegation was made

certainly I will have to withdraw if I made an indirect allegation.

MR. SPEAKER: The hon. member.
MR. NEARY: Now, Mr. Speaker, to proceed with my matter of

privilege, Sir, citation 109, T might for the benefit of the hon.
gentlemen who do not have Beauchesne in front of them quote the
relevant section. "In the Commons, on the 12th of April, 1733,
and on the lst June, 1780, it was resolved that 1t was a high infringement
of the privilege of the House, a crime and misdemeanour, to assault, insult
Or menace any member of the House in coming or going from the House." And then
it goes on, Sir, Your Honour has the citation there, "or upon the account of
his behaviour In Parliament; or to endeavour to compel members to declare
themselves in favour of or against any proposition "and so forth and so
on. And then further down in citation 110.

"It is a breach of the privilege to
molest any senator or member of the House of Commons on account of
his conduct in Parliament. Courts have decided in the United Kingdom
that contempt was implied in the following instances: Challenging
members to fight on account of their behaviour in the House or anv

committee thereof, or even on account of remarks made outside the House
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MP, NEAPY: which touched proceedings in the House.'Now

T need not g¢o any further, Mr. Speaker, because on all counts the hon.
gentleman is guilty. And I want to draw to the Speaker's attention that
when the situation occured over here, Your Honour, just ocutside the
Opposition Common Room, I asked one of the constables 1f he +ould intercede
and see that things were taken care of and the constable did go forward.
And I told the constable that members of the House have the same privilege
outside the House coming and going as they do in the House.

VP, MOTCAN: Do not be making such a2 fool of yourself,

for Heaven's sake. Sit down!

MR. SPEAKER: Order,please!

MP. MORGCAN: Your are making an absolute fool of yourself.
MP, PECKFOPD: You are wasting the time of the House.

MP, NEARY: So that constable, Sir, was a witness to the

behaviour of the hon. gentleman and my hon. friend restrained himself,
Sir, even though he was being provoked and intimidated by the hon.
gentleman and insulted. And I believe the other constable, Sir, who

is also looking after the House, T helieve the other constable was
within hearing distance of the language and the challenges that were
flung at my colleapgue. Also in attendance, Sir, right cutside of the
Chamber, listening the same as I was, was the Deputy Speaker of the
House if Your Honour needs another witness. My colleague the member for
Trinity-Bay de Verde (¥r. F. Rowe), my colleague the member for Terra
Neva (Mr.Lush) and, I telieve, the member for Grand Falis (Mr.Lundrigan)

was there.

AN HON. MEMBER: The Deputy Speaker.
MP, NFAPY: The Deputy Speaker, I just named the Deputy
Speaker.
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MR, YORGAN: Watch yourself and get the facts straight
this time.

MR. SPEAKER: Order, please!

MR. SIMVONS: He hit a nerve now.

MR. NEARY: So, Mr. Speaker, this is a very, very serious

matter, Sir, a matter that deserves the immediate attention of Your Honour.
If necessary, Sir, we are prepared to move the appropriate motion,but I
believe Your Honour is quite capable of advising the House of the action
that is necessary in this particular case. But I cannot help but reiterate,
Sir, it was a disgraceful display on the part of the Minister of Tourism,

and the reason I am raising it is, Sir, that I hope we will never see a
repeat of it again in this session of the House. It is the kind of 2 thing,
Sir, that we saw happen in previous sessions of the House that led, actually,
to fisticuffs. That was an explosive situation this afternoon and but for
my colleague, the member for Bellevue (Mr. Callan),I am afraid that it

would have ended up in a brawl.

MR. SPEAKER: The hon. Minister of Tourism.
MR, MORGAN: Mr. Speaker, to that point of privilege.

“r. Speaker, this aftemmoon when the House of Assembly closed ~ First of
all, may I say, Mr. Speaker, that because you were in the Chair at the time
prior to the House closing and recessing for the Committee rising, Mr.
Chairman was in the Chair at the time, there was a point of order - I am
SOTTry, Mr. Speaker was in the Chair, your Homour was in the Chair - it

was during the late show between 5:30 and 6:00. While the hon. gentleman
from LaPoile was speaking about the use of Covernment air services including
the Government aircraft and helicopter services, the houn. gentleman from
Bellevue stood in his place on a so-called point of order, which was

not ruled as a point of order after by Your Honour, pointing out that

I had used a helicopter to land in a certain place on a Sunday aftermoon
in some part of Trinity Bay and that I was using the helicopter in an

improper way, and he could prove that, and that was his point of order.
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MR. YORGAN: At the time it was ruled out of order as

not a point of order. When the House of Assembly rose this evening I
was here gathering my papers, Mr, Speaker, when the same hon. gentleman
from Bellevue came across the House over here -~ at the time T recall
there was at least one constable here on the floor of the House - he came
across to my place where I was sitting, gathering my papers, and said,
"Now I got you, now I got you, Morgan, now I got you", and T said, "What
are you talking about?”. He said, "Well it is in the press'". What he
was referring to,Mr. Speaker, was a little article in some local paper
out in the area which reads as follows, and I have the clipping here:-

"A helicopter landed in Mr. Hector Driscoll's yard on Sunday, August 15,
at 2:30 P.M. Mr. James Morgan, Minister of Transportation and Communications,
occupied the plane, he and another gentleman friend of his. WMr. Morgan's
district is Bomavista North". That is a mistake, obviously, it is
Bonavista South. That was in the paper. He referred to that clipping
which is on my desk, saying, "Now I have you, Morgan, are misusing
the Government helicopter". I sald, "Look, 1f you want the information,
I will give you the information". As he was crossing the floor he said,
"I got the information, You were misusing Govermment helicopters, and I
will make it public"., I was standing here and I challenged him to make
the statement outside the House of Assembly so I could take him to court
o1l a court case.

In standing in the doorway over there, and I
was standing over here, he repeated his charges again. I crossed the
floor, Mr. Speaker, and I again in no way mentioned fight, in no way
challenged to fight. I challenged him to make his statements ocutside the
House of Assembly so that T ecould sue him in court for statements made
about me which are untrue, that I was misusing Governrent helicopters,
The fact 1s, Mr. Speaker, the case the hon. gentleman is referring to is
on a Sunday afternmoon I happened to be working, doing the public business

of the Province, on a Sunday afterncon, in the weekend, out meeting with
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MR. MORGAN:

no way t0 defend ourselves. And I agailn tomight, Mr.
Speaker, reiterate by saying that what I said this afternoon
when the House of Assembly roseyI can repeat in the Chambers
and repeat it with a clear comnscience. If the hon.
gentleman has the courage to make the same charge as he

made to me in the Chamber after the House closed this
afterncon outside the Chamber ,he will find himself in

court. It is as simple as that.

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Hear, hear!
MR. SPEAKER: The hon. member for Bellevue.
MR. CALLAN: Mr. Speaker, it is rather unfortunate of course

that it was after six o'clock, the House of Assembly
tapes were offyI presume, and therefore all we can do is
go on the way the minister describes what happened and the
way, of course, I describe what happened. The true facts
of the matter are that I, after the House closed at six,
all T simply did, what I said, Mr. Speaker, I said it before
the House closed at six = the tapes are there-and when I
walked across the House to the Minister of Tourism's

desk after six o'clock, I walked over with a smile
on my face but for some reason, Mr. Speaker, the gentleman
was in a rage. The gentleman went Into a rage.
SOME HON. MEMBERS: Oh, oh!
MR. SPEAKER Order, please!
YR. CALLAN: In no way did I tell the member that I would
prove that he landed in a helicopter. The member had
that little piece of paper that he read from three or four
days ago because I sent it across the House as a joke

three or four days ago.

SOME HON. MEMBERS oh, oh!

MR. SPEAKER: Order, please! Order, please.
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YR. SPEAKER
It would be much better if we heard the hon
gentlemansand anyone else,without interruptions.
MR. CALLAN That {s right, Mr. Speaker,
MR. SPEAKER: Essentially I have to hear the two hon. people
directly affected, There are no tapes to go to, There
is no Hansard to go to. I have to hear what each says.
Obviously the account is somewhat different from each but
I have to hear what each says and see what happens then.
The hon. member for Bellevue.
MR. CALLAN: Thank you, Mr. Speaker. Well, Mr. Speaker,
as I saidywhen I walked across and spoke to the gentleman -
I spoke to another hon. gentleman before that, Mr. Speaker,
just to say, well it has come up now, it is out now. But
as far as saying,"I have you now"or - what was it the menber
said? -"I got you now," uwo such words were uttered. And
the minister was 1in a rage. Mr. Speaker, I think it is
fair to say that the anger that the minister showed had
nothing to do with what was said this afternoon. It was
just a build-up to the way that I had been critizing
the minister on previous occasions, yesterday and today,
about the miles of pavement that have gone into his district
when I did not get any in mine.

So, Mr. Speaker, after I went across and I saw
that the minister was angry, I preceded over to the common
room to get some papers and then go downstairs. The
minister chased me over and I came back to see what he

had to say and, you know, the minister was out of his

mind with anger. So then the minister said at least a
dozen times,“you punk"and so on and he said, "If you are
not careful, I will have you in court.®" That is all the

minister said, 4r. Speaker, "If you are not careful, T
will have you in court.” He did not say any such thing
as, "Make those statements outside the House and T will

have you in court.” All he said was, "If you are not careful,
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MR.CLATRMAN: Order,please! 1601-01

MR, SIMMONS: Mr. Chairman.

MR,CHAIRMAN : Hon. member for Burgeo ~ Bay d'Espoir.

MR. SIMMONS: Mr.Chairman, we have been asking over here for

some time for the list of companies and persons who have received RDA
srants over the years. We were given a list until early in 1974 and

we have not had any list since. If we did, Mr. Chairman, if we had an
up—-to-date. list we would not be forced to draw such general conclusions
from the information as we are ©bliged to do . We have today a
summarization of the industry and the number of jobs created and that kind
of thing. I, Mr. Chairman, submit to you that I could prepare this kind
of a list too and put it out to the committee, I am not suggesting that
anybody nas deliberately mislead the House but I am saying, Mr. Chairman,
that we have no way of testing, checking om the authenticity of the
imformation in those statements. Iadeed,if yuu took the statements of

the Premier about the number of jobs that his administration has created
since he came into power you would not have the dismal unemployment rate
of thirty per cent or whatever we have; we would have about two jobs for
every person if you add up all the jobs that the Premier claims to have
created almost single-handedly since his administration came into power,

I say to him and his administration that the only jobs I know of, the

only jobs I know of that they have created are in Montreal where the
McConnell Agency seems to be doing fairly well.

This document that we have today from RDA is
not worth the paper it is written omn, not worth the paper it is writtem
on. It 1s just a summerization, You deo not know where the projects are,
you cannot check- their authenticity, you do not kmow if it is a false
document, you do not kmow what it is. Now I have heard the Premier say
today to the Leader of the Opposition, Why does he not take my word for ir?

When we were talking about some other matter today," Why does he not
take my word for 1t?" I took his word, Mr. Chairman, for years about
what was going on in Public Works and found out almost too late that I was

[ )
being led cown the garden path. I took the word of the present Minister of
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MR, SIMMONS: Manpower when he stood in his place and gave

us a statement about what was going on in Public Works, March of last
year and,ir. Chairman,I found that I could not take their word for it.

I took the word of the Minister of Mumicipal Affairs last year about the
Mount Pearl arema and I have learned now that I cannot take their word
for it. I taok the word of the member for Mount Pearl (Mr.N.Windsor) when
he stood in his place an evening or so ago and told me that he would be
glad to have an investigation and then I get information which is to the

contary. I get information -

_MR.N.WINDSOR: When did you get it?

MR. WHITE: Do you want it all?

MR, STMMONS: If the member can tell me where T got the information
AN HON. MEMBER: I know where you got it. lell us what you got.

MR. SIMMONS: Ah ha! I have got a lot, Mr. Chairman, that is

not even directly pertinent to this subject of rural development.but I
have something that is very pertinent to the member!s statements a couple
of nights ago. Indeed I have to check the Hansard first and see if,in
the light of what I have,: he misled the House the other night. I
have to see if that is the case. I will not say that, I just got this
in the last hour or two and I just want to determine whether indedd the
member for Mount Pearl (Mr.N.Winsor) Tisled the House on the subject of

the Mount Pearl arena.

MR.N.WINDSOR: A point of order.
MR. CHATRMAN: A point of order has come up.
MR. DINN:. The point of order, Mr. Chairman, 1s that the

hon. member 1s saying here in the House again,as he said during the estimates
of Municipal Affairs and Housing,that,for example,I did not come clean on
the Mount Pearl arena and if I had given the information to him he would have
known last year and that I would not be stuck with things and so on. The
fact of the matter is that the hon. member said in thils House yesterday

that the police were into my department, werée into the minister's office -

MR. SIMMONS: No, Mr. Chairman, iio, Mr. Chairman -
R.N.WINDSOR: - took the records of the Mount Pearl arena and

the Hamsard can be checked -

MR. CHAIRMAN: Order, please!
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MR, R. SIMMONS: members will recall that I said about a
half dozen lines and the structure of the sentence in each case was the
same. "Documents relating to the llount Pearl Arena which were in the
office of the council in Mount Pearl are now downtown." Then I said,
to skip over into the point the minister has made, "Documents relating
to the Mount Pearl Arena which were in the minister's office are now
in the RCMP office." At no time did I say the RFMP was in his office,
at no time did I say there has been a raid of his office.

!R. CHAIRMAN: Order, please!

In regard to the point of order, I think
hon. members will recognize that there 1s a difference of opinion here.
I do not think that in anyway gets into the range of disorder in the
House. There is not a point of order that I can rule on. Hon. member.
MR. R. SIMMONS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Chairman, the Mount Pearl Arena is
another subject that I want to talk about. I now have a big, fat file
to help me talk about it then I will do that at the appropriate time.
The member may not be surprised of what I have but he will be disavpointed

I have it.

TR. N. WINDSOR: Not at all.

MR. SIMMONS: So he should not stick his neck out too far.

MR. N. WINDSOR: Table it.

MR. SIMMONS: He should not stick his neck out too far. I will

table whatever I read from.

MR. N. WINDSOR: I will make sure you do.

MR. SIMMONS: Indeed I shall and I will invite the member to
be present to keep me on my toes on that point. I now make the promise to him
I will do that.

Now, Mr. Chairman, what I have been saying in
the last minute or so before I got sidetracked a bit on the Mount Pearl Arena
issue, which is an issue I would very much like to talk about tonight, is
that we have difficulty taking anybody's word on that side of the Fouse, given
the record. And so when I am given this document this afternoon.

MR. HICKMAN: A point of order
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YR. CHAIRMAN: (DR. COLLINS) A point of order has come up
*P. A. HICKMAN: That comment by the hon. gentleman

for Burgeo — Bay d' Espoir (Mr. Simmons) is totally out of order
and totally unacceptable in this forum. I ask that he be
directed to unequivically withdraw.
MR. R. SIMMONS: What is it? What 1s the point?
MR. A. HICKMAN: No hon. gentleman can cast reflection
on the honesty of any other hon. member of this House.,and when the hon.
gentleman stands and says that he is not prepared to take the word
of any hon. member or minister opposite that most assuredly FESCS
reflection on an hon. member.
MR. W. N. ROWE To that point of order, Mr. Chairman.
MR. CHAIRMAN: The hon. Leader of
the Opposition.
MR. W.N. ROWE: There is a distinct difference between
saying that the member is a liar or the member is dishomest or you cannot
believe a word the member says and what might my hon. colleague has said
when he was making his few remarks. What he in fact said was that based
on the experience that he has had with .hon. members opposite he finds
it difificult -to take their word. Now that does not mean that any
gentleman is a liar over there or thar amy ;... gentleman is not in fact
telling the truth at the moment, Mr. Chairman. What he says is that
based on the experience,shared by myself,I might add.it is very difficult.
Now that is not to’ say that he cannot be persuaded that they are in fact
telling the truth on any given occasiongbut based on his experience,
particularly with the Public Accounts Committee,he finds it very difficult
to accept what has been told him. That is the essence of what my hon.
colleague has said and he is in no way calling anybody acroes the 'ouse
dishonest or a liar or in  gpy way dishonourable, Mr. Chairman.
SOME HON. MEMBERS: Hear, hear!
MR. CHAIRMAN: Order, please!

It seems that we are in a somewhat ef
difficult area here.I think it is clear, and hon. members of the Committee

will recognize that it is clear that hon. members cannot accuse
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MR. CHATRMAN: others of misleading the House in a
deliberate way. I emphasize the word 'deliberate'. It cannot be ruled

out of order if an hon. member says that the House has been given
information that is not correct because often information is interpreted

by the person who is giving it. But it must not be stated in any way

that there is a deliberate attempt to mislead the House or to deliherately
give the House incorrect information. We have the difficulty because when
things are stated clearly like that #t is easy to rule; when words are used
in some of the same context but not as clearly stated as that, it does make
the job of the Chair somewhat difficuylt. As far as I understand, the words
in question, at issue, are '"take the word" - "we cannot take the word".

So onme has to reflect on whether this means deliberate misleading or whether
this means that information has been given whien can be Interpreted as being
incorrect infomatim,. not necessarily deliberately incorrect,but incorrect.
I am sure hon. members will realize that this is a difficult point to decide.
I would think that the best way out of this would be I1f the hon. member for
Burgeo —~ Bay d' Espolr did cRarify to the House that he in no way meant that
there was any deliberate attempt to mislead by other members on the other

side.
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MR. SI Mr. Chairman, of course I do not particularly
want to take the time of the Committee on this one or get members:
blood pressure up on the subject, Mr. Chairman. The record -
perhaps I will clarify, I was going to say the record is clear,
but obviously it is not clear because I have been asked to clarify,
When I sit in this House, Mr. Chairman, and see the Premier,in response
to a question of this side, say that no political influence was
used in the Exon House case —
AN HON. MEMBER: You are right.
MR. SIMMONS: - and then, Mr. Chairman, see him on T.V. the next
night or see somebody else report that the Premier intervened directly
to get an individual into the Exon Home, then I find it difficult to
accept what [ am being told in this House, Mr. Chairman. Now if you
make me say I am going to accept it I will do it for Parliamentary
niceties. I find it difficult. I find it difficult to take the
answers that I have been getting on the Public Work's issue here in
the House because they do not jibe with the facts that are now coming
out in a public enquirysthat came out in the Public Accounts Committee.
I find it difficult to accept, Mr. Chaihnan, bocause the realities
are so different from the sugary coated reality that the boys on the
other side would like to have us accept and swallow hook,line,and- sinker.
We are not so dumb as they think we are, and the people of Newfoundland
and lLabrador are not so dumb as they think they are. And that is what
I find difficult to accept, Mr. Chairman.

Now if this government, Mr. Chairman, would give
us a 1ist of RDA loans for the last four years,I would be in a position
then, Mr. Chairman, to decide whether or not, Mr. Chairman, they are being

any more fair and square about the RDA since 1974 than before 1974.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Order, please!
MR. SIMMONS: Mr. Chairman, does the Minister of Justice have

a problem other than the ones we know about?I am trying to make a speech

over here.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Order, please! Order, please!

MR. HICKMAN: The Chairman asked you to clarify your remarks or
withdraw.
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MR. CHAIRMAN Order, please! Order, please! In order to
dispose of the point of order without any doubt,would the hon. member
for Burgeo-Bay d'Espoir (Mr. Simmons) inform the Chair whether it his
conviction that there was no deliberate attempt ~ I have to emphasis that
these arethe gperative words here - that there has been no deliberate
attempt to mislead or give incorrect information to the Committee?
MR. S Yes, Mr. Chairman, if you want my convictions on the
matter I will just state them. If you want me to stay withinrthe rules of
Parliament I shall say this, I will withdraw any implication, any verbal,
any stated implication that there was any deliberate misleading.
MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you.

I think that point of order has been disposed of

The hon. member for Burgeo-Bay d'Espoir.

SOME HON. MEMBERS Hear, hear!

MR. W.N. ROWH: You never sald they were deliberately misleading
MR. SIMMONS: That is right.

MR. NEARY: The hon. House Leader is daydreaming

The hon. member's blood pressure is up.

MR. SIMMONS Now, Mr. Chairman, if we had the list of individuals,
companies, enterprises, the numbers of Jjobs, and the dollar figure 1in
terms of grants,we could decide whether the government has been any
mo;e fair and square since 1974 on RDA than they were before 1974,
Now, Mr. Chairman, let us do away with one myth that we will

hear about a dozen times in Committee when one of the minister's gets
up and starts ranting and raving on this subject, that we want to spread
names all over the country. We have a 1ist of hundreds of names
here, I have had them in my possession for four years, Mr, Chairman,
and we as a group over here altogether have only ever mentioned three
of these names publicly, three and three only. Each of the three
have excellent credentials as representatives of the Tory Party.

Am I right on that?

MR. NEARY: That is right.
MR. SIMMONS: Three people only have excellent credentials -
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MR. NEARY: 1 defeated one twice.
MR. SIMMONS: - including one on Bell Island, and a couple of
others we know about, three of them, and not necessarily Tiving in
rural Newfoundland, and we exposed thatsname and allsbecause we think
it should be exposed, because we were told that RDA was going to be
for certain noble purposes and we find that it was being used as a slush
fund.

Now I want to know, Mr. Chairman, if since 1974
they stopped using it as a sTush fund? Because I have clear proof
that up until 1974 they were using it as a political slush fund! RDA
was a political slush fund. I do not know what has happened in the past
four years, Mr, Chairman, I do not know if it has changed. But 1f you do
not want to take my word for it,take the Tist called Rural Development
Authority Loans-Grants made to January 15, 1974 and go through them,
the hundreds of them as I did, total up the figures, look at the areas
involved - Teave out the names of the people, I am not talking about the
names at all - Took at the kind of enterprise and the district and you
will come to some fairly interesting conclusions, Mr. Chairman, some
fairly interesting conclusions. You will find that the total grants
for that period was $3, 535,000 given out in loans and grants
during the period up to January 1974.

Now, Mr. Chairman, this government talks about

developing rural Newfoundland,
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MRLSIMIONS: I would assume thar goes not particularly mean

St. John's or Cormer Brook, Indeed in the context we know the rural
community, I would think that you are talking about communities of

1U0 people, 200 , 2000 maybe, 3,000 aaybe but certainly once you get
over 4000 people in Newfoundland you think in terms of a town rather
than a liftle rural hamlet. Indeed I went to the people involved at
the federal level,and I do not mean federal government but at the
national level,who are involved in subjects related to rural Canada
and they tell me their definition of the rural community is a community
of under 4000 populationm. Now, Mr. Chairman, using that guideline,

Mr. Chairman, using that guideline -

AN HON. MEMBER: Organize your speech.
MR. SIMMONS: Mr. Chairman, I will not only organize my

speech 3 I will also give it out the way I want to. If the minister wants

the information I will give it to Iiim.

MR. HICKMAN: You gave the name.
MR. SIMMONS: I did not give the name, Mr. Chairman. I

said I talked to people who are involved in the subject of rural Canada

at the national level- not the federal govermment level, at the national
level-and they advised me that for their purposes they categorize a

rural community as ome of being under 4000 people, under 4000 people.

And using that guideline,Mr. Chairman, I found,loocking at the list up

so far as I nave it,and it.is four years old, Mr. Chairmam, I caution

you it is four years old.-do not blame me for that.I would rather analyse
the list up till today if they would give it to me, I have asked for it
for four years, my colleagues here have asked for it for four years and
they will not give it to us. The Premier in the last twenty-four hours
has said that telephone bills were paid out of public money therefore it
is public knowledge. I wish he would apply the same brillant conclusion
to this business here and make it public knowledge, This is public money,
very much public money. So I find in locking at this list, Mr. Chairman,
dispite the fact that it is supposed to be for developing rural Newfoundland

more tnan half the money, Mr. Chairman, was spent in communities of over
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NMR. SIMMONS: 4000 people, Indeed just about $100,000 of

it during that period, $92,000 of it,was spent in a rural community that
I am sure all of you will know about, a rural community in this Province
that all of you will know aboutsif you can believe it;$92,000 in a rural
community called St. John's., There 1s a struggling little isolated

rural community for you, There is a place that needs some rural development

right bad}
MR. HICKMAN: $92,000 on the street (inaudible)
MR, SIMMONS: $92,000, Mr. Chairman, But over half of it,

Mr. Chairman, over half of it, Mr. Chairman, in communities of over 4000
people. Now, Mr. Chairman, I come to the interesting statistics,because
this is the hon. crowd that tries to blush-and they find it more and more
difficult to blush these days, Mr, Chairman. It takes a lot more to make
them blush these days, a lot more - they try and blush when we talk
about slush funds and when we talk about patronage and when we talk

about favouring certain districts. My colleague here from Lewisporte
(Mr.White) was subjected yesterday to a vicious attack by the Minister of
Municipal Affairs for suggesting, as my colleague rightly did,that they
are playing hanky-panky now with the capital grants. Well,I say to him it is
not new, He is right in what he said but it is not mew. It was going omn
in 1972, 1973, the begimning of 1974, I do not know whether it has gomne

on since with Rural Development Authority, I do not know because they will
not give me the information but,Mr. Chairman, in the period of 1972 to
1974 of all the grants given out, Mr, Chairman, and we are talking about
$3,535,000, of all the grants given out, Mr. Chairman, $451,000,less than
half a million, Mr. Chairman, went to the districts then represented by
Liberal members, less than half a million to districts represented by
Liberal membersj; $63,000 went to another district which was represented
by an independent,or an NLP member at that particular timejand nearly

$3 miliion-¢2.89 million, $2,893,000-went to districts represented by

PC members at that particular time. Now, Mr. Chairman, if you add all
these figures up you will not get a total of $3,535,000 .yeare still missing

one figure. There was ome otfer district during that period which was

without any member -this is a lesson for all of us —this district was
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MR. SIXMONS: without any member for most of the period. You
remember that Mr. Cheesman.the tlien Hinister of Fisheries,was elected
in Hermitage and he resigned just a year almost to the day tnat he was

electeds
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MR. R, STMMONS:

Then from March of 1973 until the Fall of 1974, for a year and a half

there was no member in that particular district, the district of Fermitage.
But during that period, Mr. Chairman, the district set a record. It

had more rural development granks and loans —

MR. F. WHITE: I wonder what the figures are for
Twillingage district.
MR. R, SIMMOWS: - more rural development loans and
grants than any other district in the Province-Liberal, P.C. or

N.L.P. It got $12¢,000,most of it in August and September just

before the election was called down there.

MR. CHAIRMAN: (DR. COLLINS) Order, please! The hon. member's time
has rum out.

MR. R, STMMONS: I have run out of tdme and I will get
back to the subject later, Mr. Chairmam.

MR. CHAIRMAN: (DR. COLLINS) Hon. minister.

MR. PECKFORD: Mr. Chairman,I would lilte to respond
to some of the comments just made by the hon. member for Burgeo -

Bay d' Espoir (Mr. Simmoms). I find it very passing strange that he
spent just about all of his speech dealing with the past,which nobodv
is supposed to deal with anymore in this House , and the other things
is in 1974 or 1973 whatever, The argument that, 'we use only
three names, Mr. Chairman, of that whole list of names you gave us'
as 1f you can argue after using three names that that makes it all
worthwhile,it is only when you use ten or fifteen names does it
become wrong to do, the priniciple by which we have established the
nolicy of not releasing the namqs,and the hon. member for Burgeo -
Bay d' Espoir (*r. Simmoms) is 1llving proof in his

speech tonight of the very reason why we do not zive out the names
anymore. It 15 hecause when we do they pick and choose names to try to
generalize the total and that is what it does. pacause one name, if
the hon. members on the other side are just going to use one of those
nemes and keep using it, well then what does that do to that man or

woman? What does that do to their husband or wife? That does that do

o tle famil" of thd nnonle comcerned 23 1f For sore stranTe ¥Yeason
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(. PRCRFORD: because thev happenad to have a
certain nolitical affiliation it is therefore wrong for them *o
apply for a Rural Development Authority Joan., T mean what is the

point of it all? ¥hat is the implication, “r. Chairmen? What is the

inplication? Zre they not allowed to apply? Are they not allowed

to apply?
IR. SIMMONS: They nmever even applied (inaudible) pay-off.
R. PECKFOPD: There you gol™r. Chairman, a point of

order. The hon. member for Burgeo - Bay d' Espoir (™r. Simmons) as he
was leaving the House in reference to what I have Leen talking about
and giving loans,he says it was a pay-off. Now if that is not out of
order, Mr. Chairman, I would like to know what is.

1. S. NEARY: He is an expert on that field.

MR. CHAIPMAN Order, please!

A point of order has been raised. 1g

the hon. member speaking to a point of order?

MR. SIIIMONS: Yes.
'MR. CHAIRMAN: Hon. member.
MR. SIMMONS: I would like to speak to the point of

order. Mr. Chairman,the termipay-off'was used in response to the
minister's comments not as they apply to all the loans but a5 they

apply to the three that he was talking about,the three that we had
identified. These,I believe, Mr. Chalrman, were in every semse of the
term political pay-off's, Mr. Chalrman, political pay—off's. A man on Bell
Islandyhardly rural Newfoundland,been defeated twice as a Tory

candidate, getting a large loan, Mr. Chairman? That is a political

pay~off.I doubt he applied for the loan, Mr. Chairman, I

even -
doubt he even applied for it at all. Now let the minister get
on to something more current and let him give us the informatiom,
Mr. Chairman, the information since 1974 ,and stop using the old red
herring approach which he 1s pretty good at, Mr. Chairman, but

address himself to the subject at hand. Give us the 1list for the past

four years. That 1s all we are asking for, ¥r. Chairman, That is a reason-

able reauest,I woukd think.
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Mr. Peckford was approved, that now the hon. member for
Burgeo-Bay d':Ispoir (Mr. Simmons) is saying that they perhaps did not
even apply and that it was a political pay-off. And, you know, I
think that is - I will Tet that stand, Mr. Chairman, and I will not

address my remarks any further on it.

MR. WHITE: On a point of order, Mr. Chairman.
MR. CHAIRMAN: A point of order has come up.
MR. WHITE: The hon. minister knows quite well,having been in

this House much Tonger than I have,that he knows the procedure and the
House knows the procedure and there is a procedure whereby the hon.
gentleman can appeal a ruling made by Mr. Speaker or by the Chairman,
and he can proceed in that particular route-if he wants to do so.
MR. PECKFORD To that point of order, Mr. Chairman
I have already said that I will abide by your ruling, and whatever
ruling you make I will abide by it. But then I reserve the right to
continue to discuss and to debate the issues that are at hand which
in no way challenged your ruling, Your Honour.
MR. WHITE: What a coward!
MR. CHAIRMAN: Order, please!

I did not understand that the ruling was being

challenged. I ruled that there was not a point of order before the

Chair -

SOME_HON. MEMBERS: Hear, hear:

MR. CHAIRMAN: - and therefore the hon. member can continue his
remarks.

MR. PECKFORD Exactly, Mr. Chairman. Thank you very much

Thank you for your protection. Al1 T was trying to say, Mr. Chairman,

in relation to remarks made by the hon. member for Buroeo-Bay d'Espoir
(Mr. Simmons) in which he was making charges, he was alleging that

a number of people who had the courage to be of one political persuasion
or another and who were getting into a number of business enterprises,
applied under existing programmes, financial programmes that the

Department of Rural Development has, and were approved and they went
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Mr. Peckford ahead into those enterprises; and I would imagine
that there were loansand I imagine they have been paid back now.

The whole point of programme is to give some incentive to people

to start,and they are low interest loans rather than the same current
bank interest rates to heip stimulate, to create new jobs in the
Province. You know, but I find it extremely passing strange

that at the one hand the Opposition are saying,''Give us the 1ist and
give us the names- and we will be responsible individuals; we will

be responsible individuals in talking about those names, and we will
not do ft,because look what we did in 1974, See, Mr. Chairman, you can
trust us.  Look what we did in 1974  1e only took three names and said
that these people were getting the Toans because they were members

of the P.C. Party and they had to be paid off. And so therefore,

Mr. Chairman, there is nothing wrong. There is nothing wrong, we are
being extremely responsible. We are only saying that every time that
you give out a group of loans quite a few of them happen to be to

Tory or political friends and we are paying them off. That is all.
And so on that basis there is no problem for you as the Minister of
Rural Development or for you people over here as a government to go
ahead and release these names because we are going to be responsible ,
we are only going to call them political pay-offs, that is all.

And we are just going to pick out the names that we would like to

pick out and try to see whether they were P.C. or Liberal, use the
ones that are the juicy ones or seem to be the Jjuicy ones so that then
we can get another crack at the government. So we are extremely
rasponsible, Mr. Chairman. And we would ask again for the Minister
of Rural Development to give us that 1ist."

Well, you know, Mr. Chairman, it begs an answer
because they prove from their own mouths why it is not possible, why
it is impessible for us as responsible individuals on this side of the
House to release names, because they will use them as they see fit
and try to taint the political pay-off business on it. So I am more

convinced now than ever, I am more convinced now than ever, if I needed
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Mr. Peckford: any morelconvincing,that the policy of not releasing
these names is a very responsible policy,because otherwise we would
have to put up with the spectacie of having individuals in this
Province, citizens of this Province being called that this programme
is only given to them for political pay-off reasons. So obviously,

Mr. Chairman, what we have done, I think, is responsible. We have
given the 1ist indicating the categories of where the loans were given ,
the number of loans, the number of jobs created, the amount of money
laid out, public money laid out for these proarammes.

Secondly, Mr. Chairman, I fail to understand
how the member for Burgeo-Bay d'Espoir (Mr. Simmons) can use a definition
of ‘rural' which originated in Central Canada and apply it to Newfoundland.
I thought that we always said in this Province as Newfoundlanders,

“The guys up along, the people up along they do not understand
Newfoundland, and the things that apply and the definitions that apply
in Upper Canada are not necessarily the kinds of standards that we
will use in this Province because we are a tiny bit different, we
are a tiny bit different for a whole bunch of reasons, historically,
geographically— climatically,too —and for a whole bunch of other
reasons, so therefore it does not apply. But when it is convenient,
Mr. Chairman, when it is convenient then the hon. member for Burgeo-
Bay d'Espoir does not mind using an Upper Canadian definition of 'rural’
and then try to apply it to our situation when,by using that definitian,

he can try to make a few Tittle Brownie points, Mr. Chairman,
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Mr. Peckford to indicate that this is not a Rural Develooment
programme because we are lendina money to a town that has a population
of 4,000. Or, and we have to be very careful here, Mr. Chairman, there are
many loans that have been given out to people who reside in St.

John's even but whose enterprise is not in St, John's. There are

many people, for example, in Springdale, the capital

of Green Bay, with a population of 3,500, close to 4,000. Well

now,I do not know what most Newfoundlanders would consider Springdale.

I would say a lot of people in Newfoundland would consider Sprinadale

to be a rural part of Newfoundland, hyt Tlet us say it is not a

rural part; let us say it is a very urban par@,.which it is not- but
Just let us say,for argument sake- most of the people in Sprinadale ,
for example, who qualified,because I happen to know fairly intimiately
the people who are involved in pulp wood contracting and sawmilling

in Springdale, they are residents of Springdale,  their business is
in Springdale, but they do not cut trees in Springdale, Mr. Chairman.
And the enterprise for which they aot the loan in the first instance

is in the forest . And in any case this whole definition of rural being
4,000 is just dreamt up to try to concoct an argument, to try to prove
that this Rural Development programme only applies to urban centres.
Well,that is just so much hogwash. It is not true. It is totally

not true. And there is nothing wrong in any wav, Mr. Chairman,

The emphasis, the majority,by far the majority - an per cent,

95 per cent-of the assistance that we give throuah our proorammes in

the Department of Rural Development actually go into';éw

Newfoundland. And if there is a man or a business enterprise in St.
Jdohn's or in Corner Brook or Grand Falls or Gander,and he is going to
create a number of jobs and we can help him by havina a Tow interest
rate on our loan programme and get him started,where he would have
difficulty if he went to the bank, and he is going to create jobs,

and it is manufacturing or resource , based in some way, or even in the
tourist industry which is bringing in new dollars, what 1is wrong with

loaning to that? What is wrong? What is wrong with loaning to that
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Mr. Peckford business just because they 1ive in Grand Falls or

Corner Brook? Nothing wrong with it , Mr. Chairman. And I defend
that kind of a scheme, that kind of a system, as Tong as our emphasis
continues to be in the rural parts of this Province. You do not
exclude.The whole nature of rural development, built into the whole
philosophy of rural development is the concept of flexibility, the
concept of high risk to try to stimulate, to get incentives in; and

when there are other enterprises come along that are in a larger centre,
I see nothing wrong with assisting them if they are going to

create a few jobs.

The Opposition talks about creating jobs. Well
that is what we are doing.trying to create jobs. We created over
3,000 of them since the programme started and 400 last year in 1977.
That is performance, Mr. Chairman. That is performance. That is
what the Rural Development programme does. A1l our development
associations, for example, have headquarters,very often in what the
hon. member for Burgeo-Bay d'Espoir (Mr. Simmons) will call an
urban setting. But they serve the whole region, the region in
which they are located through our community projects and so on.
ke have funded through the development associations various experiments
all around the Province, y&u know, which is rural development in
essence. So, you know, there is only one or two rare occasions
that anybody even applies from a St. John's or a Corner Brook, and
when they do,if it is a good viable, feasible proposal and they are
going to create a few jobs.the more power to them, and we will loan them
the money and get the few jobs created. And I think most people in
this Province would endorse that kind of an attitude and that kind of
a programme to apply right across the Province with an emphasis on
the more ruralyscattered parts of the Province, and that is what we
are trying to do.

Now, Mr. Chairman, if one wants to get back
into the petty, small debate of talking about districts and where loans

or grants are put out, we have been through this in Municipal Affairs
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‘R. PECKFORD: provosal it will get approved. If it is a

bad proposal it will get rejected. If it is a grey area it gets deferred

and the benefit of the doubt is always given to the applicant, and we defer

it. I have only been in the Department of Rural Development for three or

four weeks now = three weeks, two weeks, or whatever - and I have deferred
applications because it was a grey area that possibly could go shead, and

sent men out in the field again to re-—examine the market for that product

to be sure that if it was rejected it would be rejected after a full and
complete Investigation had been done. I have done it already for
applications in districts represented on the other side of the House, for
example. I have donme it for the hon. member for Stephenville (Mr. McNeil),

I just sent him a letter on it today, and I will do it for any member on
either side of the House, anytime, if they came to me; and even if they

do not, I will do it if it is a grey area. Because our job is to create

jobs not in PC districts but in the Province. As somebody said here the other
day, I think it was the Leader of the Opposition, 'In this House when we become
members, we become members for the Province and not just for the districts that

we represent'.

MR. WHITE: You would never say that.
MR. PECKFORD: The induvstrial incentive grants, percentage-

wise, there are more in Liberal districts than there are in PC districts.
So where is the argument on the politiecs of it? Where is the argument?

There is no argument. There Is no argument om it.

MR. FLIGHT: Ask the Minister of Tourism (inaudible).
MR. HICKMAN: How come that Lewlsporte gets so much wmore than

Grand Bank when they are both rural districts?

MR. PECKFORD: So, Mr. Chairman ', the arguments put forward by
the hon. member for Burgeo-Bay d'Espoir (Mr. Simmons),which were only three:
that they would not use names, and yet they go ahead and use names; that the
definition of rural development that he picked up from some place in Upper

Canada, which 1s non-applicable, and he only uses different standards when
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1R. PECKFORD: it is convenient to him, and the whole question

of politics in ity T think T have succeeded on all three points to
indicate to the hon. member he should re-think his speech before he gets
up again to try to lay om the table, or lay before us, some arguments

which, obviously,are shallow and specious.

MR. CHATRMAN: (Mr. Young) Hon. Leader of the Opposition.

MR. W. N. ROWE: Ah, Mr. Chairman.-

MR. HICKIAW A point of order.

MR. W.N.ROWE: - how disillusioning to see an hon. minister -
MR. CHAIRMAN: Order, please!

MR. HICKMAN: The Speaker has to come back, Would the hon.

member yield?
MR. W.N.ROWE: Sure. I will be recognized again, Mr
Chairman, I assume?

HON. MEMBER: Hear, hear!

On motion that the Committee rise report
progress and ask leave to sit again, Mr. Speaker returned to the Chair
MR. SPEAKER: The hon. Chairman of Committees.

MR, CHAIRMAN(Young): Mr. Speaker, the Committee of Supply have
directed me to report that they have considered the matters to them
referred, report progress and ask leave to sit again.

On motion, report received and adopted,
Committee ordered to sit again presently.

MR. SPEAKRER: I would usually wailt until eleven o'elock,
oT when normally I would come back into the Chair,to rule on this matter,
but it 1s one of such a nature that I think it should he settled and
resolved and finalized as soon as possible.

I have spoken with both hon. members, the
hon. member for Bellevue (Mr. Callan) and the hon. member for Bonmavista
South (Mr. Morgan), and reviewed with them what transpired between a
fews minutes to six and a few minutes after six. It is obvious to me
that there were serious differences of opinion, a very heated debate,

and the possibility, as well, of serious misunderstanding.

3675



-



April 20, 1978 Tape 1306 (Night) PK -1

MR. CHAIRMAN XV - RURAL DEVELOPMENT
The hon. the Leader of the Opposition
MR. W. N. ROWE Thank you, Sir.

I am sorry the minister is not in the House at the
moment because I would not want him to think that what I am about to
say I would not say in his presence. Sir, I have been in this House
now for a long time and I have observed members as they have developed
along and it is very disillusioning to see a man or an hon. member
of promise,or apparent promise,get up and make, Sir, what can only be
characterized as one of the most hypocritical speeches ever made in
this hon. House.

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Hear, hear!

MR. W. ROWE Yesterday,or within the iast couple of days.,

we had the Premier of this Province stand and say that whenever public
money is spent the public has a right to know what the public money is
spent on.  Everybody in Newfoundland can find out the salary of every
single civil servant in this Province. Every member of the public
can find out how much money is paid and for what purpose for every
member in this House of Assembly, Any money spent, Mr. Chairman, out
of the public purse is accountable through this House to the public
and the public has a right to know and generaily and usually they can
find out.

The Department of DREE in Ottawa makes grants
and loans to certain firms and certain individuals, and far from keeping
the amount or the name of the person back, Mr. Chairman, you read in
the paper every day that such-and-such a comoany has received a
DREE grant -

MR. F. ROWE It is sent to all members,too.

MR. W. ROWE: - in order to modernize it. Press releases

are sent out because the federal government has nothing to hide and
the person receiving the money has nothing to hide.

MR. SIMMONS: Name the company and the town every time.

MR. W. ROWE The company,the town, the area, the province,

all information is given out, Mr. Chairman. VYet this laudahle principle,
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Mr. W. Rowe: which apparently the Premier of the Province
adheres to and espouses and gets up and makes speeches about in the

House concerning telephone calls or telephone bills or anything else
.

this hon. minister, Mr. Chairman, is not prepared to go along with.

He seems to think that if some person gets a Toan of $50,000 or
a grant or a Toan from this particular department that that person is
immune or inviolate as far as public scrutiny is concerned. And

I say, Sir, that if anybody wants to feed at the public trough the
public should know -

SOME_HON. MEMBERS: Hear, hear!
MR. W. - what is being fed and how much
SOME HON Hear, hear!
MR. W. ROWE: The whole idea that somehow my hon. colleague

here is going to make use of this information in a public way, and

that there is something scandalous or bad or wrong or strange about
that, Mr. Chairman; the imputation of, somehow, motives, unworthy
motives, to my hon. friend here because he wants to know so he can
determine for himself, as a representative of the people, how this
money is being used or misused or abused as the case may be, the idea
that somehow he is doing something wrong when he is trying to protect
the public purse, that is a scurrilous tyee of impression to try to
give abroad, Mr. Chairman. And I repeat that if anybody is getting

a Toan from this government or a grant or money from this government
then the people of this Province has a right to know who that person is
and how much he is getting, and for what purpose and where it is going.
And if a person, Sir, does not like the idea of having that fact, that
simple truth, that simple fact made public, then Tet that person go
back home with his tail between his legs and not come Tooking for any
more public money. And if there is nothing wrong with the reason for
the money having been given out, then no person has any reason to fear

any public abuse or any public criticism -

SOME HON. MEMBERS Hear, hear.
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Hear, hear!

And there is nobody in this House, Mr. Chairman,
who wants to deny the use of government money for the creation of jobs
and getting small industry in rural Newfoundiand going. Nobody wants
to do that. But I as a member certainly want to Took at Toans and
grants which are being made and find out for myself, satisfy myself
whether in fact this money was made for the purpose of creating
Jjobs, this loan was made for the purpose of creating jobs or whether,
as my hon. friend so amply said,it is for the purpose of a political
pay-off. [ deserve that information.

MR. FLIGHT: You are entitled to it.
MR. W. ROME: And T am
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MR.W.ROVE : entitled to that information and I should have it,
It is a shame and a scandal that I can go down to my district and
someone can say,“l think so-and-so over there across the way got a loan
to put up a flower shop. Do you kpnow anything about that?" And I as a
member of the House have to say I do not know if it is public money or
private money; he might have gone to the barck or he might have gone in
and had a little chat with the minister, I do not know. And the person
says:Can I get a loan to put up a greenhouse or can l:get a loan to do
that?"And I have to say I do mot know, I do nmot know what bases people
are getting loans and grants om, I have no idea whatsoever except from
some vague guidelines which may be tirown out from time to time by this
minisery; I do not know if you are entitled to money like that chap
down the road who you suspect has government money, I do not know if
you are or mot because I have no Drecedent to go by, I have no examples
to go by. I do not know. A&ll I know is that this govermnment will
spend millions of public dollars, tax dollars of this Province, pass
it out, I do not know if it is a risky loan, I do mot know if a person
gets a loan if it is a bad risk or a good risk or whether that is in
fact a grant instead of a loan, I do not know the procedures which have
been used against {individuals to try and collect loans. I know nothing,
Mr. Chairman, as a member of this Housesand to have a minister, a youngs
developing, promising minister trying to make his name in the glamorous
field of multinational oil companies, to have him stand up in this House
and in a scurrilous, hyprocritical fashion try to paint my colleagues
here,or myself perhaps in a few minutess,as somehow low, ill-motivated,
abusing the processes of this House to try to find out how that money
is spent - the minister should resign, Mr. Chairman.

SOME HON.MEMBERS : Hear, hear!

MR.W.ROWE: Now I am prepared to accept that he has only
recently been appointed to that department and he i1s following along
the same low and political and in some way scurrilous practices cf his

predecessors in that department and that he really has not had aa

opportunity to come to grips, to come to his semses on this particular
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MR, W,ROWE: expenditure. 1 admire the hon. gentleman.

Perhaps, Sir, when he really comes to think about what he is doing, the

principle he is violating, the concept which he is throwing to the

four winds which we all should adhere to, when he comes to grips with that,

thinks about it, mulls it over in his mindyhe will say certainly it is

only reasonable and sensible that members of this House, on both sides

of the Houseshave this information as should be and is their right as

members of this House and protectors of the public purse. Remember,Sir,

that the only power of this House, the ounly power of this House, Sir,

when it all boils down,the only power of this House is to grant supply

unto His Majesty or unto Her Majesty,as the case may be; that is our power,
to withhold supply from the government, Her Majesty as representec

by the govermment, Thatis our power. And to think that we are here

voting or not voting as the case may be in absense of crucial information

is an insult flumg in the teeth of every member in this ion. House by

that minister and by that government.

Now, Mr. Chairman, enough said on that particular
subject. One or two other minor matters I would like to mention quickly
because we have not had any opportunity really to get into the Budget
debate or the Throne Speech debate and make the gemeral points. One
hates to waste time on estimates on general points; we should be more
specific but we are forced into it because we have been building up,members
of this House have been building up now for nine or ten months watshing the
abuses take place in this Province and you are force; to make general Tinde
of speeches on the estimates when you shauld not be doing it but we are
forced to because we camnnot resist it.

MR, SIMMONS: They have not got the sute tp call the Budget debate.
MR.W.ROWE : I will just make one or two other small minor ™~

not minor points,but one or two other points very briefly, Sir. First

of all,let me say this: This is a govermment which takes great pride,
simulated pride at leastyin its rural development programme. Rural development
is the hallmark, It is one of the things that put the Premier where he is

today and this government where they are today: Let us get away from the

big things and let us get into the small things! let us develop rural

Mewfaundland. And we look at the budget and we see a
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Mr. W. Rowe: Department called Rural Development, and we see
that the expenditure in that department, Mr. Chairman, is 3 7ittle over
$5 miTlion out of a budget of over $1 billion, $1 billion of Provincial
money expended, a 1ittle over $5 million of Provincial money expended.
The Rural Development Department that this government is so proud of
represents an expenditure of one-half of one per cent of the Province's
budget, one-half of one per cent. About the same chance, Mr. Chairman,
of beina struck by lightening.

MR, PECKFORD: That is the whole point. You do not understand small,that is your
problem.

MR W ROWF
small now, Mr. Chairman. Small-minded, it is narrow in a speech that

I understand small, I am Tooking at something

he just made to this hon. House insulting me as a member and everyone
else in the House on both sides. That is small. And it is a case
where small is small, not small i$ big, or less is more. One-half of
one per cent spent by this hon. government on rural development,on the
Rural Development Department.
1 heard the Premier stand up one time in this

hon. House and try to announce what he considered to be the major step
forward for this government. It was the Throne Speech of,not this
year but the year before this, last year, He stood up and he said,

"We started this great Rural Development Association programme , and
we started to fund the Rural Development Associations.' That is what
he said, Mr. Chairman.
SOME HON. MEMBERS: oh, oh!
MR. W. ROWE: That is what he said. And my hon. friend
again,the Chairman of the Public Accounts Committee,corrected him on
the spot. The Premier of this Province did not even know, did not
know that Rural Development Associations, first of all, had been in
existence long before anyone ever dreamed that that government was going
to go into power, Mr. Chairman. And the government started to fund
with public funds these Rural Development Associations in the year, if
I am not mistaken, the year 1970yannounced by myself at a Deveiopment
Conference which we held at the Arts and Culture Centre. I am not sure
if the hon. Minister of Justice was not in fact in the government in those

days, I do not know, yo might have crossed over by then.
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MR. HICKMAN: Mo, I was in opposition.
MR. FLIGHT: If he was not kicked out.
MR. W. ROWE If he had been in there we would not have

been able to get the concept through Cabinet, Mr. Chairman. Ore

of the reasons I was able to push it through is that there were a few
people with progressive ideas and minds in the Cabinet in those days
after himself and his friend, Mr. Crosbie, and the other hon. gentleman I
will not mention because he is now retired from politics.

MR. FLIGHT: He was kicked out. !

MR. HICKMAN: Speakina in terms of politics now, tell the

House about the first cheaue that was delivered to the (inaudible)

Development Association -

MR. W. ROWE: By my hon. friend opposite,l would imagine.
MR. HICKMAN: No, no, no, no. He subsequently became a

Liberal candidate.

MR. W. ROWE: 1 do not know all the 1ittle details.

MR. HICKMAN And he was so -

SOME HON.MEMERS: Oh, oh.

MR. W. ROWE: We can talk about cheques, Mr. Chairman.

MR. HICKMAN They were so insultad, they were so insulted

that they walked out.

MR. W. ROWE: We can talk about cheques. My hon. friends
here remind me that certain deliveries might have been made in brown
paper bags or otherwise, Sir, -

MR. HICKMAN: Might have been, yes, might have been

MR. W. ROWE - on the first day that this House opened, this
was back in 1972,but we will not get into that transference of

money either in specie or by cheque.

MR. FLIGHT: The Bi11 Saunders cheque.

MR. W. ROWE: We will not get into that. But if we are going to
get into the transference of cheques,we can have a rip roarine
debate, Mr. Chairman. The point of the matter is that it was the
much maligned former administration which is going to be rep1aced‘by

a new former administration shortly.
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MR. PECKFORD (Inaudible) for other additional programmes
that are in place that all the development associations can
apply for. So whem you say that you must qualify it with that
kind of thing in order to be completely valid on the point.

MR. W. ROWE: Yes, Well the $10,000 was

intended at the time, although there was no government control
over it, the $10,000 was intended for salary and office

expenses, administration, and nothing else. I mean they

could take part in ARDA, or DREE or -

MR. NEARY: Canada Works.

MR. W. ROVWE: - or Canada Works or anything else
that was on the go.

MR. FLIGHT: Who changed it all?

MR. PECKFORD: (Inaudible) programmes in place that we have
now whereby they can increase (inaudible).

MR. W. ROWE: Yes, Well $15,000, Sir, seven years
later -~ I was looking at some figures there the other day - a dollar
then in 1970 has eroded by just about three quarters, eight years
later. And the same point which is made by my hon. friend, the
member for Grand Falls with regard to Term 29 certainly applies,
because of inflation and the eroding of the dollarsto these
development associations. The $15,000 presently received by them
for salaries and for operating expenses is less, Sir, in fact,

in purchasing power and valueyand with the increase in salarles,
the increase gemerally not only in the erosion of the dollar

but the increase in the salaries and the expected salaries and
the standard of living generally which has gone up even faster
than the inflationary spiral, that Sir, has made that $15,000
worth far less than the $10,000 which the programme started

out with in 1970 under the former administration. And I would
commend to the minister the idea of perhaps increasing it to
$20,000 or $25,000 or something along those lines. I have

talked to a number of the hired, the executive director, the
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MR. W. ROWE: hired person involved in the
rural development associations, people who by and large are
very interested in the concept of rural development, which
is why they are there. Teachers,for example), a man who
could be making $18,000 making $10,000 or $12,000, because
he is interested in rural development.

I think it is a shame to
penalize people for their altruistic motives and their
desire to get into rural development. And the minister could
certainly take into account the idea of raising that and
allowing a person who is in a field like that perhaps to
get $18,000 or $20,000, something along those lines.

Now, Sir, it is very
difficult to speak, Sir, when you have -

MR. HICRKMAN: I am sorry. I am sorry. I am sorry.
MR. W. ROWE: - the lovely, beautiful form of

the Minister of Justice interposed between yourself and your
friends opposite. I get distracted by the svelt form of the
Minister of Justice.

I would like to reiterate, Sir,
some of the points made by the member for Terra Nova (Mr. Lush)
and others in this House in which they condemned utterly, as
a concept - one minute left - the Action Group, the $2 million
that will be spent, will have been spent over a fourteen months
period on what is essentially, Sir, I have said publicly and
reiterate now, is essentially a slick propoganda prograrme
brought into effect bv this government in order to fund the
PC Partv's advertising agencv, McConnell Agenciles. $2 million,
Sir, and I think, Sir, that this $2 million over the same period
of time could have been much better spent perhaps in funding
rural development associations or some programmes or pilot
programmes or perhaps even if it wag distributed for advertising

purnoses to the variorus line departments involved in rural
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MR. W. ROWE: development, agriculture, fisheries,
rural devalopment itself, others who are involved in-resource
deyerlopment4I should sav,rather than rural development, resource
develooment, give them more monev for advertising vrogrames

to bring home to the people the programmes which are being
offered and ways and means of getting through red tape,

cutting through red tape. Maybe that would be a batter use of
that $2 million. The use it is now being put to, Sir, I think
is a poor use, a use which is not in keeping with the best
interests of the people of the Province. My time has rm

out I believe, Mf, Chairman. Thank you, Sir.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The hon., Minister of Tourism.
MR. MORGAN: Mr. Chairman,
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Mr. Morgan: few words on this very important department
under the minister's heading. First of all, may I say that I was

not surprised to listen to the Tast remarks. [ note that there were very
Tittle remarks made about the department itself. I think it clearly
indicates-and the speeches prior to the Opposition Leader's speech

made by the Opposition members and spokesman-the major difference
between that party over there and this party over here, now the
administration of the day, because we stand for 1ittle business, small
business enterprises, and we stand for rural development. The fact is
today in our Province we have 14,000 small business enterprises
registered.Out of these approximately 13,000 are employing twenty

people or Tess. And these people are obtaining assistance,many of them,
from the Rural Development Authority . Indeed it was not with any
astonishment to me that the hon. gentleman, the now Leader of the
Liberal Party seeking to become Premier of the Province,had 1ittle to
say about rural development, and a policy to this administration today.
SOME HON. MEMBERS Hear, hear.

MR, Morgan:, Because, Mr. Chairman, I am going to going

to go back a 1ittle bit, not back in history, I am going to go back

a couple of years or so, but no longer than maybe six or seven years

or so. I will not go back to 1957 when they commenced what they called
the resettlement centralization programme, but I will come approximately
ten years later, 1967, ten years after they commenced the resettlement
programme in this Province.

AN HON. MEMBER Do not be too hard on them.

MR. MORGAN The first comment made on this matter was made in

July of 1967 by the then minister responsible for the Department of
Community and Sccial Development of the government, pr, Fred

Rowe. He pointed out then that up to that time they had moved 12,000
people, relocated 12,000 people. They had eliminated in the Province

of Newfoundland 183 communities.

AN HON. MEMBER Vagabonds
MR . MORGAN: He stood proud in this Assembly, and i+ was carried
by the press, and I auote - which I can table for the hon. Chairman

if requested tc. It was carried the next day on July 28, 1967 in
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Mr. MORGAN: The Evening Telegram, which we all know,

quoting Dr. Rowe at that time, standing proud in the House of
Assembly about the fact that he had eliminated 183 communities.
Wellsthat is back in history-because I am not going to go back

in history-because I thought at the time that that was policy from
the older generation of the Liberals, and I looked at the time to just
getting involved in politics with some hope for the new Young Turks
of the Liberal Party who came on the scene shortly after. I am
talking about, for example, the present Leader of the Opposition,
the present official Liberal Leader in the Province, and a few

other of his colleaques who came on the scene at the time.

MR. LUNDRIGAN Those Uaandans

MR. MORGAN And T said to myself,maybe this policy will

recede the destruction of places Tike where I came from, Flat Islands,
in Bonavista Bay,and many other viable communities around the Province-

SGME HON. MEMBERS: Oh, oh!

MR. MORGAN: - that they would have some hope.

MR. W. CARTER: Order, now!

MR. MORGAN: But in 1969 a new young minister came on the

scene in that same governing party, a new,bright young minister with
new ideas about the freshness of the rural parts of our Province

and the future of the rural parts of our Province. The first major
policy that department, which he headed at the time, was not to give
Toans to small businesses, not to establish a group to assist people
n getting information to help assist small businesses, no, Mr,
Chairman. It was -

MR. H. COLLINS Is this the same gentleman -

MR. MORGAN: - to press the federal government to change their
regulations with regards to resettlement

MR. H. COLLIRS Is this the same gentleman we are looking at over there?
MR. MORGAN: I quote on March 7 there was a statement,again

in The Evening Telearam ,which I have clippings here which can be
filed in the House, reporting the House of Assembly, March 7, 1969.

I am not going back in history, just 1969.It was only a few years before
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MR. {ORGAN:

can be tabled here, the criticisms that came from all over the Province;
came from the Anglican church, spoken out loud and clear in the Province,
the head of the Anglican church in the Province,against resettlement, the
damage it was doing to Newfoundlanders, destroying the moral fiber of
Newfoundlanders in rural Newfoundland. Along came Professor Kato Wadell
strongly criticizing the programme and policies of this brightyyoung
miglster with his new programmes. Along came Professor Clinton
Herrot, another man strongly opposed, in cpposition to the resettlement
prograrme. Along came Dr. Noel Ervison and on we go.  Some of the major
complainers are among the members of this House today. My colleague
the Minister of Fisheries, the MHA for Placentia East (Mr.Patterson), the
present member in Bonavista North (Mr.Cross) and many others who are now
in the House today made thelr views ykpown publicly. The criticism came
from the residents in the influential society of Newfoundland. But, Mr.
Chairman, despite that, despite all that om January 17,1969,and despite
the criticism the following year, cespite that at a time when we thought
there was going to be hope that this kind of ancient policy in the past
ten years was going to change, that there was going to be a nupe for
rural Newfoundlanders, that there was going to be a lLcpe for some of those
rural communities, that there was going to be hope for small business

around Newfoundland,the bright young minister announces §2.58 milliom.

MR.W.CARTER: . What for?
MR..MORGAN & What for? For the resettlement,the centralization
programme,

SOME HON.MEMEEEFS: Shame! Shame!

MR. :{ORGAN: On May 2,1969 the present Liberal Leader

announces cver $2 million for the resettlement prcgramme. Not only that,
Mr. Chairman, that I think would probably be forgiven, - maybe he was under
the control of a Liberal premier who had strong ccntrol over his Cabinet
ministers. Maybe that was one reason and I could forgive him for that -

but the same young minister went to the great Liberal conference over in

Hot Springs, British Columbia and this was in -
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MR. LUNDZIGAN: The Thinker's Conference.
IRGIORGAN ¢ The great Thinker's Conference in liot Springs
and he stood up and put forward a papar on new centralization.
AN HON ,MEMBER: He was all wet.
MR. XORGAN: He used centralization to support the case

for a prospective regional development programme. The policy for regional developmert

was to centralize the smaller communities.

AN HON. MEMBER: Rural Development, 00! Resettlement, yes:
MR. MORGAN: And it was quoted November 2nd. and I can

table those quotes.

MR. LUNDRIGAN: Table the document. That is a beauty

MR. MORGAN: The present Liberal leader said that it
was his plans and his intentilon to relocate 0,000 people, to relocate
80,000 people. That is the programme. I do not want to go on and on
with these little detailsy; I want to point out clearly what the policy of
the Liberal party was then with these young turks.

SOME HON. MEMBER: Oh, oh!

MR. MORGAN: Then there was a great flurry and we
saw people like Dr. Sametz pointing out in replies to my colleague

Lhere from Grand Falls (Mr.Lundrigan) who was raising - I will not use the
unparliamentary word, but he was raising it quite loud in Ottawa. It was
quite loud. He was standing up for the communities that now exist today
which fortunately exist somewhat through his efforts in saying, No: I am

not standing for this kind of elimination of these comrunities ia our

outports.’
AN HON.MEMBER: Start them all over again.
MR. MORGAN: He said there was a black list and Dr.

Sametz came back’and 1
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YR. J. YORGAN: quote him here somewhere, he said no,

it was not a black list, it was an isclation indéx outlined :.to him

in a policy programme by his minister and the minister was and now

is the present Liberal leader. Let me quote -

AN PON. MEMBER: Table it, 'Jim'.

MMR. J. MORGAN: "The inshore fishery is now over populated
and is therefore no longer a feasible economic base for the small

settlements. We must eliminate - We must eliminate! That i5 their kind

of policy.
AN HON. MEMBER: Table it.
MR. J. MORGAN: Now you might think I am emotional in my

speech tonight but I lived through reseétlement in Flat Islands, Ronavista
Bay. I lived through it. I saw what was happening to the people who

were forced to move, forced to move away from viable communities.

MR. FLIGHT Will they go back?

MR. PECKIORD: They are gone back, boy

MR. LUNDRIGAN: They will not go hack after they visit Paris
Mr_ J. MORGAN: So, Mr. Chairman, the point I am getting at is

this, if I thought today as a politician that that man who was then in a
position to make decisions, the man to make decisions regarding all parts
of the Province, particularly rural parts of the Province and as minister
in a Cabinet he had the authority to make decisions and these were the
kind of decisions he made. The question in the back of my mind as a
Newfoundlander today is this, if by some fluke the same hon. gentleman

got authority again, what would he do to rural Newfoundland?

SQO'E [IOM. MMBERS: Oh, oh!

MP. J.MORGAN And that question is lingering in the minds
of people in Bonavista South district where, I recall, Father James Reresford
came in with a delegation, twenty-five people came in led by Tather James
Beresford and they were told, "Go back to your communitles because vour
commumities are dormant” - the term used was 'dormant' - You have sleeping
commmities. Your only chance to survive and to get the services you

require," Mr. Chairman, they were told this aud this is all printed

here in a clipping I can table -
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R, S. YEARY: Sit down, boy!

MR. J. MORGAN: Thev were told this: the only way you have

to survive, to get any kind of an economic hase, right from Charleston

down the shore to King's Cove and on to Stock Cove - Knights Cove,

nineteen communities were told on the south side of Bonavista Bay back

in 1970, when the same hon. gentleman was the minister, were told, "I am
sorry, gentleman. If you want the services that you require from government
you will have to relocate from the south side of Bonavista Fay." 4#nd

Father James Beresford took the very strong stand - I recall it was headline

news in the Evening Telegram, the clipping 1s here, in 1970 - that they

would have to blast them out of Bonavista South if he wanted to move they,
biast them out! Thank God today that that stand was taken in a very firm

way, and if 1t was not for that the Bonavista South as I know it today would

not exist.
MR, DINN: That is where we are putting In the services.
MR. J. MORGAN: And these are the kind of things that bother

people and it bothered people living in rural Newfoundland, and I am not
at all surprised tonight that the hon. gentleman did not have much to

say about rural development because what I think, for his own sake, as

a man aspiring to become the Premier of this Province, should relieve

the minds of many concerned Newfoundlanders living in those outports today
that if he ever came into a position of power to make decisions in regards
to the rural outports of our Province, these small outports, what would
he do?

MR. DINN: Well, after the next elction he will have to
be resettled himself. We will resettle him to Paris.

MR. J. MORGAN: Because, Mr. Chairman, we are a party that
helps small businesses, not a party of pie In the sky dreams. Tet us

look at some of the pile in the sky. I heard some comments, I think in
this debate, that 'Oh, they have no planning. They have no concapt where
they are going what they are doing. There is no planning, there is no
development."” How about some of those pie in the sky dreams of the
previous administration when this young turk was then the Minister of

Social Development, the bright, new young fellow on the scene and
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MR. MORGAN: about the chocolate factory,

do you recall a great chocolate factory?

AN HON. MEMBER: Adlers.

MR. MORGAN: Many of my colleagues recall

a great chocolate factory, where the chocolate got frozen

up and they had to get - it froze into great big cakes

and they had to get a bulldezer to bulldoze the big cakes

of chocolate out through the side of the building. Remember
that one? How about that great rubber factor, the rubber
factory whereyfor onesI think they manufactured boots for

a full six months and they were all for the left foot. That
was a fact, left footed boots.

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Oh, oh!

MR. DINN: They were making the boots for
themselves.

MR. MORGAN: How about the hockey stick plant?
Someone passed the puck theresvery obviously. How about the
great orange julce proposal, the orange juice proposal from
Panama$ That was going to be a great enterprise but it all turned
sour.,

MR. DINN: There were a lot of proposals
from Panama. They are still coming in.

MR. MORGAN: Oh, the great ple in the sky dreams and
the great plans!

MR. DINN: The member for LaPoile (Mr. Neary)
is still getting in proposals from Panamsa.

MR. MORGAN: Because, Mr. Chairman, the fact is
that rural development has always been a very sore point with the
Opposition,and in particular now with the new Liberal leader,
because rural development has been a very positive part of this
government's activity.

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Hear, hear!
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MR. MORGAN: - a very positive part and toaight
I noticed, it will be carried in Hansard and I will pick up
Hansard and read it tomorrow or the next day, it shows where
the present man aspiring to become the Premier of the Province
only tonight says - tonight! He says tonight - he talks about
the scurrilous acts by the previous ministers in the Nenarrment
of Rural Development by making loans to people out in rural
Newfoundland, because his colleague, the previous speaker
sald they were making loans to party hacks, PC Party hacks,
and then he stands in his seat and demands, "Give me a list.
Give me a list." What for? So he can go on in the morming
on open-line, on the hot line shows in the Province and say, "This
man,.he had to be a PC; he had to be a PC to get a loan from
the PC Government. He had to be a PC. He had to be a PC
Party hack. He had to be a friend of the government to get
a loan,"

How do vou think a man out in
Amherst Cove, Bonavista Bay would feel if he saw his name being
pushed over the radio stations by an Opposition spokesman
saying, "Oh that man had to be a PC to get a loan from the
PC Government"?
MR. DINN: Reputations do 2ot mean
anvthing to them.
MR. MORGAN: That is what happened here, that
1s what happened approximately two years ago, I was in the House
here, I saw it happen two years ago, They'demanded and got some
names. The next day, Mr. Chairman, these names were bandied back
and forth through all the media and accusations about these
innocent gentlemen who were out there, innocent gentlemen who
came In innocently in a way to get some assistance to
get something done in their respective communities and their
names were bandied back and forth publicly. What for?

MR. FLIGHT That happened five years ago.
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MR. DINN: You cannot remember what happened
five minutes ago let alone a couple of years ago, so

I would not tell you.

MR. MORGAN: And tonight the same hon.
gentleman, the same hon. gentleman tonight stands in the
House and demands a list, demands a list of these loans
approved.

MR. DINN: We will send it to Paris
after the next electionm.

MR. MORGAN: Demands a list so he can go
out tomorrow morning and toss them around to all the media,
and toss them around the open-line shows and attack them by
saving, "Oh, you are a party hack because you got a loan

from the government.”

MR. DINN: We will send them to Paris.
MR. MORGAN: That 18 the reason why it is

not being passed out; that 1s a good reason why it is not

being passed out.

MR. DINN: He has a fixation now. Now watch
out!” He has a fixation.

MR. MORGAN: Now, Mr. Chairman, in closing my
remarks I will say very sincerely- if I can get my colleague

to be quiet there - I will say, Mr. Chairman, I will say very
sincerely that I am convinced today with the reports and the

facts- it is not reports,it is facts; the facts speak for
themselves - that if this party on this side which is now the
government of the day, had not come in and formed the
administration in '71, looking at what was happening with the
resettlement programme in 1970, one year before and '71, talking
about moving and reloeating 80,000 people, talking about
eliminating 183 communities around rural Newfoundland, talking about
a concept that one day we would only have to service 300 communities - that is

a quote - "to only have to service in our Province 300 communities,"
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MR. MORGAN: that if we had not formed the
government in 1971 and stopped that policy, thit we would have
seen the destruction of a way of life which today we are

quite proud of in our Province.

SOME HON, MEMBERS: Hear, hear!
MR. CHATRMAN: The hon. member for Bellevue.
MR. CALLAN: Mr. Chairman, I do not think that

the hon. gentleman from Bonavista South (Mr. Morgan) has
recovered from this afternoon yet, because obviously he would
have made more sense than he has been making,

Mr. Chairman, in one breath

we hear
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Mr. Callan:

this government saying,"We cannot afford to provide the social services
that the rural communities in this Province need ". And then with the
other breath they are saying that nobody should ever been resettled,
we should have had one hundred or two hundred communities more than we
have today. But if this government, Mr. Chairman, cannot provide
essential services to the communities that are presently existing in
this Province, services Tike post offices, telephone systems, water
and sewer systems, federal wharves, artesian wells, town halls,
firefighting equipment, incinerators , sports fields and ball fields,
schools, and the dozen and dozen of other things, if this government
today cannot afford to provide these essential services, social services
to the communities that we have now,then how would the government
manage to cope if they had to maintain these services on the dozen

and dozens of communities that nobody wanted to stay in, by the way
nobody wanted to stay in?

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Oh, oh!

MR. CALLAN This minister can get up and talk about somebody
that he talked to in Bomavista Bay from Flat Island, and I can just
as quickly tell this House that I was talking two weeks ago in
Arnold's Cove to a gentleman who wanted to repair his house under
Rural RAP, and I said, by the way, you know, "How much money did you
get when you moved in off the Isiand?" "Oh he said, "I moved in off
the island years before the resettlement programme started." So,
Mr. Chairman, it is utter nonsense. It is something that should be
washed under the -
AN HON. MEMBER: It is a red herring.
MR. CALLAN: It is a red herring. That is all it is. It is
a red herring.

Now, Mr. Chairman, I want to say this,if this government,
Mr. Chairman, were concerned about rural development, developing the
rural areas of this Province and was concerned with rural development

then why did we have the two big events that we had in 19747 In 1974,
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Mr. Callan: Mr. Chairman, one of the big events that we had

was this, we had redistribution where seats were added in the larger
urban areas. If this government is so concerned about the rural

areas of this Province then why is it that we have thirty-six and

forty and forty-odd communities expected to be served by one MHA

and we have in this city and other cities and towns around this

Province a half a dozen MHAs to serve an area half the sizef a quarter of
the size? That is how you Took after the needs of the rural parts

of this Province, give them fairer representation,And this,of courses,
applies especially, Mr, Chairman, to the Labrador section of this
Province where we have three seats and it is impossible to cover the areas.
So that was one of the things that happened in 1974, Mr. Chairman,

that proved that this government cared nothing at all about the rural
areas of this Province, all they care about was adding enough seats

in the P.C. strongholds in the urban centres so that they would be
elected to power again no matter how strong the tide was for the Liberal
Party to get back into power.

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Hear, hear!

MR. CALLAN: That is what happened.

And, Mr. Chairman, in 1974 we hear this government and
the various ministers talking about how we want to develop the rural
areas of this Province and how we should have more farmland under
production. Mr. Chairman, it was in 1974 that hundreds and thousands
of barrels of potafoes were dumped down into Central Newfoundland because
there was no market for them. And at the same time about 30 per cent
of the potatoes and vegetables that are consummed in this Province
only 30 per cent is produced here, is grown here; the other 70
per cent is brought in from P.E.I. and the other provinces. So how
does that tie in with developing the rural areas of this Province? How
does that tie in?

Now, Mr. Chairman, we talk about sawmills and we talk
about Tumber. Mr. Chairman, according to the Budget speech less than
40 per cent-now we do not know how much less; it could be 10 per cent

less than 40 per cent, it could be 20, we do not know how much less -
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of the lumber that is used in this Province is produced here, less than
40 per cent; more than 60 per cent of the Tumber used in this Province,
Mr. Chairman, is brought in from elsewhere, is imported into this
Province, at the same time, Mr. Chairman, that we have millions of

cords of wood rotting on the stump.

MR. DOODY: We can hear you well enough.
MR. CALLAN: You should be used to it. You are Tistening to the

Minister of Rural Development bawling Tike that every day of the week.
MR. DINN: I did not even hear vou.

You cannot hear me?

MR._DOODY: I did not say I could not hear you.
MR. CALLAN: Now then, Mr. Chairman,

SOME HOM. MEMBERS: Oh, oh!
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MR. CALLAN: lumber that is used in this Province
1s brought in from other provinces,and from other countries,

I suppose,and here we have millions of cords of wood rotting

on the stump,as some people say, I think it is rotting on

the roots actually because I do not think there is any stump

there yet,

Now then, Mr, Chairman, if
this government is concerned about the rural areas of this
Province,what is needed to be done and dome immediately,and
should have been done last year or the year before, instead
of wasting these millions of dollars on this useless spray
of the spruce budworm, get in there, harvest that timber,
harvest that timber, Mr. Chairman, and at the same time
employ some of your carpenters and other labourers and
other tradesmen in building up across this Province lumber
banks so that the suppliers of lumber can go to these
lumber banks that are located here in this Province, with
our own timber,and buy from these lumber banks rather
than having it brought in by the carload, and by the train-
load from other provinces, Develop a system of lumber banks
across this Province.

Mr. Chairman, I was reading an
article recentlyjan article that was talking about the ten
Premiers of this country, and Mr. Chairman, it was very
interesting to note in this article that Premier Blakeney of
Saskatchewan was described as the brainiest Premier. About
Levesque it said that in any other country Levesque would be
Prime Minister of this country.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Order, please! I do believe the
hon. member is having a little difficulty getting the attention of
the House. Order, please!

The hon. member for Bellevue.
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MR, CALLAN: Mr. Chairman, it is very
interesting to note that this same article when it came

to speak about the Premier of this Province mentioned

three glaring things about the Premier. It said.the

Premier of Newfoundland is the tallest Premier. How very
important that is to the economy and to the rural areas

of this Province! - we have the tallest Premier. Our Premier
has the most children, eight children. How important that

is to the economy and to the rural areas of this Province!

And thirdly it said our Premier is the youngest Premier, the
youngest Premier. He does not look the youngest. 1Is that
because he works so hard,I wonder? Mr. Chairman, let us look

at the policy that this Premier had back in 1971, let us look at
it.

Mr. Chairman, it saysgand here is

the Premier speaking in 1971, before he became Premier, he said,
WNewfoundland is a sick, sick mess. It is frightening the Province
is s0 near to bankruptcy. It is $1 billion in debt with no

way to pay it off." Here is the very same Premier, Mr. Chairman,
who today, after six years, has brought this Province $3 billion
into debt. And he was scared that the Province was on the verge

of bankruptey in 1971!

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Taree billion?
MR. CALLAK: It is closing in on $3 billion; it

is closing in, it is closing in and closing in fast. If it is
not closing in fast I do not see why not, because this government
has confessed time after time after time that they camnot get the
money out of Ottawa that they would like to get and that they
used to getyso therefore 1f the government is not $3 billion

in debt and 1f it is not going into debt every day of the week,
then where is the money coming from? Is it belng created through
the dollars in the Come By Chance refinery?

MR. CHAIRMAN: Order, please! The hon. member's

remarks should be heard with at least some modicum of silence.
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MR. CALLAN: Are the new dollars in this Province
being created as a result of the way that the Limerboard mill
is working at full capacity? Is this where the néw dollars are
coming from?

Mr, Chalrman, let me refer again
to this Premier who said in 1970, he promised a svstem of
auction sales would be instituted where feasible if the PCs
were elected to ensure fishermen receive the best prices for
their fish, a promise he repeated at a campaign rally at
Twillingate eleven months later and again two or three months ago,
and one on which he has never delivered. This is the govermment
and this is the leader of a government who has the amswers to
this problem and who knows how to develop the rural areas of

this Province. Another goody
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VT, CATLAN: vet to come to functions promised by Moores

in Gander was the formation of a provincial Crown corporation to develop
Labrador resources. What have we seen in six years? What have we seen? Now
then, ¥r. Chairman, and I am sure the Minister of Fisheries would love hearing
this again, fish products- the Premier,the former Premier, the man who was
leader then,fish products, he told the meeting,should be processed in
Newfoundland instead of being shipped in bulk out off the Province,another
excellent suggestion which now has the sound of a badly worm tape recording.
Now, Mr. Chairman,here 1s the hon. member for Bonavista South(Mr.Morgan)
talling about the promices and the things that the former administration
talked about doing ond tried to do. But here I just read 1t -

AN HMW MEMBER: Table it.

MR. CALLAN: Table it? Where is the Page? Send over two or

three Pages or a book. Here are the people who are talking about the former

administration and some of the promises that were made and some of the
wistakes that were made. The Premier of this Province more tuan six years
azo talked about all the fine ideas that he had to put ianto effect when he
became Premier,and nere six years later we still have nothing, nothing to
SiowW . One minute,l am told.

Now, Mr. Chairman, in this one minute I
would like to throw out a challenge to this administration. It is quite
obvious to every Newfoundlander in tiiis Province,who is not too blinded

by PC beliefs and so on , it is obvious to every Newfoundlander in

this Province that this Province is lost, there is no future, and this
government does not know how to cope witll the problems that we have.

And they have confessed, as I said just a few minutes ago, time after
time after time after time that they cammot negotiate with Ottawa.

Well, Mr. Chairmaam, here is my challenge: After the federal election
when it comes, hopefully in June, if the Liberal Government is re-elected
in Ottawa, would this govermment aave the guts to resign? 3ecause
obviously there would be no point in hanging on. If they cannot negotiate
with the Liberal Governmment in Ottawa then that is our only hope, and so
they might as well resign. &nd the p,C. Govermment, lir. Chairman, might
not be taking a big chance, Tet us face it: Five of the provinces nave

P.C. Covermments including this onme. Untario has a P.C. government,
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CR. CALLAY: and Wew Brunswick where the hunter safety
rests ware brought from that I did seven or eight years ago and skipped
over Jova Scotia,which has a much better Junter Safety Programme, skipped
over that because it was Liberal and went to Jew Brumnswick because it is
PC. The same reason that they skipped over Nova Scotia when they said
tnat we will not spray, we will go to dew Brunswick because they are PC
and they are spraying.

Thank you, l!r. Chairman.
1R, GOUDIL: In the twenty minutes or so alloted
for remarks under this heading,Il would like to address myself to the
Department of Rural Development as it relates to Labrador and the potential
for development in that part of the Province as 2 result of some of the
efforts which already exist and hopefully some of the efforts which will
exist in the not too distant future under this particular department.

First of all I would like to make reference
to - some non. gentlemen made reference to totals under this department which
were a little in excess of $5 millionybut that does not of course include the
refunding or other funds which come from Ottawa which I understand total
$16 million under this department,$9 million of which is channeled directly
into Labrador which represents something like 56.25 per cent of the total
budget of this particular department. I thiak that - I was goinmg to use tae
word admirable but perhaps practical might Le a better way to describe the
atritude and the efforts of this department in relation to tuat otlier part
of our Province.

I am not quite sure where to begin
here but I would perhaps make refereacegnot in a critical wmannersthe remarks
nade by a number of hon. gentlemen over the last few hours and that is in

relation to resettlement.
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MR. GOUDIE: One community in Labrador which was
resettled is the community of Hebron. Most of the pecple from that

community moved into Nain.,or into a certain section of Nain.

MR. ROUSSEAU When was that?

MR. GOUDIE: I cannot remember the year now.

AN HON. MEMBER: The late 1960s

MR. GOUDIE: Yes.

MR. NEARY: Davis Inlet was resettled too.

MR. ROUSSEAU: No, Hebron was. )

MR. GOUDIE: Davis Inlet itself is not a new community.
MR. NEARY: No, but when the Base set up -

MR. GOUDIE: The location which they use right now is a

new location.

AN HON. MEMBER: Is it?
MR. GOUDIE: Yes. In any event, Mr. Chairman, I wanted to

make reference to Hebron. At a recent meeting of the combined councils of
Labrador North a number of resolutions were adopted, one of them calling
for the establishment of a new community in Northern Labrador. It is not
spelled out in that resolution that the area they are talking about is Hebron
or Okak or any other particular area, but my own opinion is that the area

they are referring to would be Hebron.

AN HON. MEMBER: Moving back?
MR. GOUDIE: Moving back for a couple of reasons. It was

basically, completely an Inuit community, a community of hard workers,of
men and women and childrem who lived with the land - not necessarily just
cff it, but lived with it. They adapted themselves over the centuries past
to accommodate the requirements of the land on the human inhabitants. They
want to get back for social reasons, but I think there is also another
overriding concern and that is the char fishery of Northerm Labrador.

I do not know if hon. members realize or not, but according to federal
fisheries biologists salmon do not enter any river North of Davis Inlet,

so the predominant fish catch from the rivers North of Davis Imlet obviously
Arctic char. It is a very marketable commodity, I might add, coming out of
the fish plants at Makkovik and Nain. WNainip kautsavinga, I think, is the

name of the plant.
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MR. NEARY: They are trying to get rid of it.

MR. GOUDIE: No, they are not tryinmg to get rid of it.
MR. NEARY: Yes, they are trying to get rid of it.
}MR. GOUDIE: They are not trying to get rid of it.

The hon. member does not know what he is talking about and I am going

to illustrate that now in just a couple of minutes -

MR. NEARY: I do not know what (inaudible).
MR. GOUDIE: - if the hon. member will remain silent and

allow me to speak.
MR. NEARY: It was under my administration that the plant

in Nain (inaudible).

AN HON. MEMBER: Be quiet and sit dowm
MR. GOUDIE: May I have silence please, Mr. Chairman?

MR. CHAIRMAN: (Dr.Collins) Order, please! The hon. member requests
silence for his remarks.
The hon. member.
MR, GOUDIE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I was saying that one of the main reasons that
residents of some parts of Northern Labrador want to get back to Hebron is
to take advantage of the char fishery, because the char are not a migratory
fish comparable to the salmon. They stay within the general confines of
the river in which they were born, so over-fishing is taking place in a number

" -
aumber of areas in Northern Labrador. But now we talk about "taking away the

fish plants" I think is what the hon. member suggested a minute ago.

MR, NEARY: No, giving them away.
MR. GOUDIE: Give them away to whom?
MR. NEARY: Fishery Products. They will probably end

up with them.

MR. GOUDIE: Mr. Chairman, I had the privilege to sit in on a
meeting two days ago in the Cabinet room in this building with the Labrador
Pesources Advisory Council, a group that I am going to have a few comments
on in just a moment, and the Resource Policy Committee of Cabinet, and that
particular problem was discussed. The comment was made that the fish plants
are going to be taken away. The comment was made by some people sitting on

that couneil, the Labrador Resources Advisory Council, and they were
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MR. GOUDIE: That was not meant to be a blow
of any kind, just a gemeral observation.

To any event, Mr. Chairman,
I will try and continue with my remarks for a few moments.
I was suggesting that the fish plants at Makkovik and Nain
are too small.
MR. NEARY: And Black Tickle.

MR. GOUDIE: Well I do not know the size of



¥R. MEARY:

And Davis Inlet and Makkovik.
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‘™. CGOUDIE: The Department of Nural Develcpment,
Mr, Chaafrman, as I pointed out initially, has a great role to
play inm Labrador; the establishment of handicraft industries,

for instance. Yow I do not wish to leave the impression that

this department was solely responsible for the establishment of
handicraft industries. Obviously that is inaccurate, because

the handicrafts which are being produced in Labrador right now
were not classified as handicrafts at one time; they were
classified as essential instruments in the lifestyle of that

part of the Province. The seal skin boots, and the duffle
varkas, and the mitts and every other item, and the hooked rugs
from the Straits of Bell Isle area, which are becoming famous

all over Canada.

But T think it s Iimportant to
point out that this department is certainly sympathetic to that
sort of an effort. They are assisting in that sort of an effort.
The handicraft -

MR. NEARY: The Govermment of Canada footed the
b11l for that.

MR. GOUDIE: Yes, I agree. I pointed out in
the beginning that the funds under this department of $16 milliomn
involves federal funds which comes through the federal-provincial
committee. I am not trying to take away any credit from the
federal government, or the hon. member's colleagues. I am just
trying to make a few points about the importance of this
department and the money in 1it, regardless of where the money
comes from, to Labrador. That i3 all I am trying to do.

The handicraft shop,which is
located in Happy Valley,last year - rather than try and give the
exact fizure because I cannot remember it, the money accruing
from the sale of goods of that business was in the vicinity
of $1 million. A1l that momey, cr the most part of it, szcing into
the hands of local people, not ounly in Happy Valley - Goose Bay

ut in other communities of Labrador as well.
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MR. HICKMAN: Hopedale, was there not a lot of activitv thapa?

MR. GOUDIE: There is another handicraft centre set up in

Hopedale, I believe there are handicraft centres set up in every community.
But that is now expanding, the handicraft centre at Happy Valley-Roose
Bay,to get Targer or get more room to bring in more suppiies to fill

demand for this sort of thing. Initially when the Handicraft
Associations were set up they went on a very simple formula that I
believe was developed in the community of Makkovik. The ladies in
that community were able to obtain a loan initially of somethina like

$1,500.

MR. NEARY Which community?

MR. GOUDIE Makkovik on the Morth Coast.

MR. NEARY: Reverend Hettasch pioneered it up in Main.
MR. GOUDIE: Okay.Well,l am under the wrong impression, I

am trying to give an example here. If the hon. gentleman would be patient
I am trying to give an example of how this works or worked in the past.
The group of ladies involved acauired a loan of something Tike $1,500
which they put into what they call a revolving fund, From that $1,500
they bought certain amounts of material, The Tadies or men in the
community who wanted to produce handicrafts came into the store,asked

for enough supplies to make a parka or a pair of mitts or whatever the
item was,took it home at no cost to them, produced the item, brought

it back in, were paid for their Tabour, the shop marked it up by 20

per cent to cover their operating costs and sold it; and from that

sort of a small beginningawhether it was in Makkovik or Nain, if that

is what the hon. gentleman contends, the principle of the thing is that it

is a lucrative business, not -

MR, NEARY: You started it.

MR. GOUDIE: I am sorry?

MR. NEARY: You started it

MR. GOUDIE Mo. The hon. gentleman is being - I assume he is

being partisan.

MR. NEARY: No
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MR. GOUDIE I am not interested in being partisan right now.
A11 1 am trying to do is point out the importance of the relationship
between this department to Labrador. And the importance, Mr.
Chairman, of such groups as the Labrador Resources Advisory Council. As
I mentioned,the Executive of the Council met on Tuesday of this week
with tthe Resource Policy Committee of qovernment to present their second annual
report, and their feelings on a number of issues related to the
fishery on the coast and other problems. And on page 3 of The Evening
Telegram ,I think it was yesterday, I heard some remarks from
some hon. members of the House,'What is going on? We are putting
money into this group and they are criticizing uys.and they are
holding up federal ministers as examples of good co-operation.

It is my contention, Mr. Chairman, that rather
than being critical of that sort of an annual report or that sort of
a situation I think we should be happy with it -
SOME HON. MEMBERS: Hear, hear!

MR. GOUDIE: -because it reflectsa healthy attitude.
ﬁ;&rthis department, the Department of Rural Development.did not
provide the funds to the Labrador Resources Advisory Council; it was
under Executive CouncilyI think, estimates. The point is that funds
were provided, the group is operating, and my own personal opinion
is that we have discussed on a number of occasions in the hon. House
since 1975 the practicality or otherwise of regional government for
Labrador. I have talked a little bit about it and some other hon.
members have talked about it. But I believe that we have the core
group now for that sort of a concept. The Resources Advisory

Council is made up of representatives from every community of Labrador,
from all of the organizations who deal with social and economic
problems. They are beginning to have an affectiye input. I believe
it is accurate to say that the Resources Advisory Council had a direct
input nto existing offshore o0il and gas requlations which have been
published, which is an invaluable service as far as I can see to this
or any other government,

MR. NEARY: The native Tand claims.
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Right.
Is that clear now? Okay.
Do mot be touchy.

. GNUDIE: I am not touchy. I am just tryirg

to explain things to the hon. gentleman from LaPoile (lir. Yeary)
1R. YMEARY: I thought the hon. geatleman was
talizing about (inaudible).

1R. HICKAN: I suggest we should be proud that we have

a man in this House who xnows something about Labrador. Let

him speak without interruption.

SOME EON. MEMBERS: Hear, hear!

IIR. NEARY He should be over here on this side
of the House, not where the hon. gentleman is.

1. GOUDIE: Mr. Chairman, all I am trying to do
is make my remarks to the hon. House and right at this point

in time I do not care particularly from where I make it. But T

have to make it from this seat here and that is what I am attempting

to do.
¥R. JEARY: Come on overybay.
HR. GOUDIE: There ars two particular concerms tiat

I have in relation to this department. One is in relation to the
federal-provincial committee,and I hone the minister will address
himself to this,and that is the designation of native communities

in Labrador, And there is one particular community which poses

a problem right now and that is the community of Northwest River.

It is not a problem in the sense that it is not designated: It is

a problem in the sense that it is only half desigmated. The south
side of the river, the Indian community,is a designated native
community, but the other side, which also has a native population -

it is not an Indian population but it is a population native to

Labrador.
MR. NEARY: I could not agree more with the hon.
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MR, CCUDIE: It is not designatad and as a result
there are problems with schooling. Indian children from the
Penamin MacKenzie School in Horthwest River - it is not the

case now but 1t was the case where some of them, if they wanted

to complete their high school, travelled to either Sz. Jouan's

or to Jabush., Thankfully that is not a problem any more. But
when you think in terms -

1D, NEARV: Because we built a school down there
too, and a dormitory.

MR. GOUDIE: Yes, okay. When you think in terms
of administering a town by a town councily,and there are at least
two representatives from the South side sitting on the town
council, the town council is supposed to be respomsible for

the operation and provision of services to all of the comnunity,
but yet it is a dividéd community according to the federal-

provincial committee. That is a problem that has to be rectified,

I thinlk,

MR. NEARY: What is the answer to that problem?
MR. GOUDIE: There is no other community in
Labrador -

MR. NEARY: Designated community.

MR. COUDIE: - or designated community, yes, that

1s cut 1in half like that.

MR. NEARY: What 1s the solution?
MR. GOUDIE: Designate the whole community is

the solution as far as I am concerned.
The other problem, perhaps the
minister -
MR. NLARY: The Grenfell people may not agree
with that.
MR. GOUDIE: I think the Grenfell people would
The other point I wanted to
make, Mr. Chairman, and T hope the minister may address himself

to, is the problem of accountability in terms of spendingz tha Tmonew
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MR. GOUDTE: by native croups. I understand,
I 22 not clear on this, but I understand that steps are now
being take1 to rrovide for accountability, I think it {is
wrong for this govermment, for the federal sovermment or
any other govermment, to provide millions of dollars of
funds to any group, native or otherwise, in this Province
and not have that group responsible in terms ¢f accounting
for how that money is spent.

So T hope the minister will
find the time to address himself to that problem and I thanl:

the hon. Committee for putting up with my remarks.

SOME HON. MIBLRS: Bear, hear!
IR, CHAIRMAN: The hon. member for Lewisporte.
IR. WHITE: Mr. Chairman, I just wanted to

nake a few remarlks with respect to this particular debate since
it is of some concern to me,and I might add for the benefit
of the gentleman from Bonavista South (Ir. Morgan) it is
a matter of some importance to me at present, r, Chairman,
and it is not a matter of being old hListory.
Rural development in this
Province has been going on for quite some time and, 'r., Chairman,
if you want to look at how the people in rural Wewfoundland
look uporn members on this side I think all hon. gentlemen opposite
would have to do is look at our seats and where our seats are

established in this Province.

MR. MEARY: Hear, hear!
YR. WHITE: ¥r. Chairman, obviously there rmust be

a kind spot in the hearts of Newfoundlanders everywhere for the
Liberal Party for the way they have continued and quickly come baclk
to the Libaral Party after six or seven years of Comservative
mismanagement.

Mr. Chairman, I was interested when

the member for Bellevue (lIr. Callan) was speal:ing tonight and he
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. F. WVHITE: rate in Yewfoundland was O per cent,
Mr, Chalirman, and if when the unemployment rate in YewfoundlanAd
was B per cent, ¥r. Chairman, the economy of this Province was"sick,
sick, sick) 1t has not got much better since. That is all I can say,
Mr., Chairman, it has not got much better since. Now today the unemployment
rate in this Province, Mr. Chairman, despite this government's so-called
rural development policies,the unemployment rate today in six short vears
has doubled in this Province. And I would suggest, Mr. Chairman, that the
economy in Newfoundland is close to death. It is not a matter of heing
sick, Mr. Chairman, it is close to death. And the economy for the last
five or six hasg been under the direction, the scattered direction,I might
addyof this government.

Now, Mr. Chairman, the hon. gentleman for
Bomavista South (Mr. Morgan) talked about the Liberals not being interested
in small businesses and quite frankly, Mr. Chairman, I wrecked my brains
to find out and to think about a small business that the hon. gentleman,
the Minister of Tourlsm,is concerned about. And quite frankly the only
one that comes to mind is Sealand Hellcopters. That is the only small
business that comes to mind.
MR. S. NEARY: What about the Ocean Breeze lounge?
MR. F. WHITE Yes, well that is another matter that I
do not want to discuss at present, Mr. Chairman. It seems to me that
that hon. gentleman who got tonight and attacked everybodyy practically
everybody who has anything to do with the rural Newfoundland , a gentleman
like Senator Rowe, Mr. Chairman, a gentleman like Senator Rowe who
represented in this House for many, many years the most rural parts
of Newfoundlandgand the hon. gentleman gets up tonight and attempts,
Mr. Chairman, attempts to throw doubt and suspicion on his long career
in this Provinee and in this House of Assembly.
MR. S.NEARY: Not even here to defend himself.
MR. F. WHITE: Not even here to defend himself. I think,
Mr. Chairmany, the last man who got up in this House - probably I should
not. I was going to say what happened to the last man who got up in
this House and attacked a parent of a member.I think hll hon. gentleman

know. It is interesting to note as well, Mr. Chairman, that yesterday -
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'R, J. MOPGAN: A point of order, Mr. Chairman.
MR. CHATRMAN: A point of order has come up.
MR. MORGAN: The hon. gentleman is now attempting to

indicate or insinuate that I attacked an hon. gentleman., All I did

in the House tonight was quote a sourceswhich I am willing to table

in the House,0f quotations made and taken from statements made by the
then minister responsible for resettlement in the Province who happened
to be then Dr. Fred Rowe. There was no attack on the individual.

MR. F. WHITE: To that point of order, Mr. Chalrman,

The hon. gentleman tonight went through all kinds of effort to determine
and to state and to try and prove -

MR. S. NEARY: It was slander and libel.

MPR. CHAIRMAN: Order, please!
MR, F. WHITE: ~ that the resettlement programme in Newfoundland

did untold damage end . linked the unteld damage to Senator
Rowe,who was at one time a ministe; in this House. WNow, Mr, Chairman,
if that is not a deliberate attempt to downgrade a gentleman's career T
do not know what is.
MR. CHAIRMAN: Order, please! Order, please!

I feel it is not a point of order but
more or less an explanation of remarks made by the hon. member for Lewisporte.
MR. F. WHITE Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for those words
of advice. Now, Mr. Chairman, in this House tonight is the hon. gentleman
éor Grand Falls (Mr. Lundrigan) who recenily left the Cabinet of the hon.
the Premier. Mr. Chairman, the gentleman for Grand Falls has only been out
of the Rural Development PBepartment for a few short weeks and I do not
think that he should be let off the hook as easy tonight as he is being
let off the hook by members in this House. Now, I do not know if the fact
that Rural Development was coming up one of those days and the gentleman
would have to answer for his deeds,if that is the reason the hon. gentleman
is not in the Cabinet today.I suspect there are more reasons than just the
Grand Falls hospital. If promises has anything to do with it, Mr. Chairman,
if promises lias anything to do with it the hon. gentleman for Grand Falls
is equally.and more so in some respectssguilty than the hon. the Premier

with respect to plaving around, Mr. Chairman, with the wmorals of Cod-fearing
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MR, WHITE: of Ottawa, criticism of everybody.
And he resigns and he blames that on the Premier. When is this hon.
gentleman going to start taking some responsibility for his deeds,

Mr. Chairman?

MR. WEARY: Misdeeds!
MR. WHITE: With respect to those lists, Mr. Chairman,

the only logical conclusion that I can come to is that the government
does not want to disclose the rural development list, the loans list,

because they have something to hide.

MR. NEARY: That is right.
MR. WHITE: Now I come to that conclusion, NMr. Chairman,

because members will notice that the government is not very slow in showing
on television and in television commercials some of the good projects that
have gone ahead in this Province with respect to rural development and
other programmes. The T.V. ads are there, milliong of dollars are being
spent to promote the good aspects of rural development, and yet,
Mr. Chairman, we in this House, the members of this douse, are not given
the opportunity to find out what Rural Development loans and grants have
been given out in this Province. All we get is @ list.

And, Mr. Chairman, another point that I would
like to make
MR. NEARY: Some of the people they are using in these

ads are hopping mad because they are being used without their permission

MR, FLIGHT: That is right.

MR. WHITE: That 1s right.

MR. FLIGHT: They are being used.

MR. NEARY: They are being exploited for political purposes.
MR. WHITE: I would like to know from the Minister of

Rural Development, for example, what quail breeding is about - I really

would, Mr, Chairman. I am interested in all kinds of projects in rural

Newfoundland.
MR. NEARY: What about the rag packages?
MR. WHITE: I'would like to kmow who came up with the

quail breeding suggestion, what it means to this Province, and how many
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MR. WHITE: jobs it means, Mr. Chairman. I would
like to know about those things. I would like to know about the

taxidermy industry -

MR. NEARY: And who is getting stuffed.
MR. WHITE: - and the taxidermist who has been

relocated on a prime plece of property on the Trans-Canada Highway at
the intersection of the Burgeo - Bay d'Espoir road. I thought it was
a new modern tourist chalet or something of that nature that was being
erected there, Mr. Chairman. I would like to know about that.
And T would like for members opposite to tell us all about that $8,000,
where it went and why it went there. Why do not all those lists of
names come out? Let us look at them and debate them, because anybody
in receipt, Mr. Chairman, of public money in this Province surely does not
mind his name being scrutinized here in this House.

The entire record of this administration,
Hr. Chairman, is one of dismal failure, and even when they tried to do
something that is fine and dandy, Mr. Chairman, something that we welcome
and something we promoted and we tried to get going, even when they do
something like that they do it in the wrong fashion. Take the seal hunt
for example, Mr. Chairman. A very worthwhile thing in rural Newfoundland
is the annual seal hunt and all members are proud of it and so on, but take
the government's attempt to sell the seal hunt around this world. It was
not built around a seal, Mr. Chairman. Those ads and the news conferences
and so on were not built around a seal, they were built around the hon.
the Premier and not the seal hunt in this Province. And that is one thing

we should remember here in this House.

MR. NEARY: And now he has got a scrapbook.
MR. WHITE: The entire campaign contains more money,

Mr. Chairman, than all the loans going to be made available this year for

rural development in Newfoundland.

MR. NEARY: Hear, hear!
MR. WHITE: That is the government's policy, Mr., Chairman.

That is the government's policy. That is the way they do things here in

this House,
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PREMIER FIOORES: I understand Ray Elliott (inaudible)

or something. I can understand way.

MR. WHITE: Yes, right.
MR. NEARY: The hon. Premier now has a little scrapbook

he carries around with him,
MR. WHITE: I would like also, Mr. Chairman, the

gentleman from Grand Falls (Mr. Lundrigan), if he does speak in this

debate -
IR, FLIGHT: (Inaudible) alright too.
MR, WHITE: = Mr. Chairman, if the hon. gentleman

does speak in the debate I would like for him to tell us -

MR, CHAIRMAN: (Mr. Young) Order, please!
MR. NEARY: (Inaudible) the momey he got to put a

factory on his ship.

PREMIER MOORES (Inaudible) Which is it?
IR, NEARY: No, I am merely asking a question -:

Did the hon. gentleman pay back the money?

MR, WHITE: Where was the hon. the Premier all nignt?
MR. NEARY: Did the hon. gentleman pay back the money?
SOME HON. MELBERS: Oh, oh!

PREMIER MOORES: ) (Inaudible) Captain Morrissey Johnson.

MR, CHAIRMAN Order, please! Order, please!

I did recognize the hon. the member for
Lewisporte (Mr. White) and I feel there are many more joining in the
debate and I ask you to refrain from joining in. I would ask the hon. the
member for Lewisporte to continue.
MR. WHITE: Mr. Chairman, as I was going to say, the
hon. gentleman from Grand Falls, when he does get up to defend his estimates,
because I notice that thie Minister of Mines and Energy has no heart for it
tonight, and I think the hon. gentleman from Grand Falls should be called
upon to at least try to defend some of this spending that is going on here.
Why does he not tell us about the eel experiment on the Exploits River? -

why that went ahead, Mr. Chairman, on the Exploits River; tell us all about
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Mr. F. White: 114 she said, "Because the raw materia] is

just not available and I had to tell the Europeans that I did not
have the quantity that they were Tooking for." And I said,"Why?"

I said:Hhat about the Exploits Valley eel experiment?" And she said,
"It was an absolutely ridiculous place to start an eel industry." The
best p];ce to start an eel industry is the small rural areas of
Lewisporte district, Stoneville, Horwoad, Birchy Bay where the silver
eel, Mr. Chairman, are in plenty there in the Fall of the year and all

we need is a Tittle bit of help and that project will boom, Mr. Chairman,

because I know it will boom. So I hope the hon. gentleman tells us about

that.
MR. NEARY: No all the slippery eels are on that side of the House.
MR. WHITE: So, Mr. Chairman, I would 1ike for the hon. gentleman

to try and defend some of this, and I do make an appeal, -

AN HON. MEMBER: Do you have the facts?

MR. WHITE: Yes. And I do make an appeal, Mr. Chairman, to
the Minister of Rural Development, the present minister, to come clean
with the Opposition, Mr. Chajrman. We have nothing to hide over here
and we hope that the government has nothing to hide. We think all
public money should be placed on the Table for scrutiny by members

and I would say to the hon. member and the hon. minister that he would
be well advised to place the list, to let us know who got rural
development grants, and I would be particularly interested in Twillingate,
Mr. Chairman, which I am sure the hon. gentleman for Grand Falls
realizes by now contains more than smoked salmon. Thank you very
much, Mr. Chairman.

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Hear, hear!

MR. CHAIRMAN (MR. YOUNG): The hon. member for Bonavista North

MR. CROSS: Mr. Chairman, certainly for -
SOME HON. MEMBERS: Oh, oh!
MR. CROSS: May 1 be heard in silence, Mr. Chairman?

MR. CHAIRMAN (MR, YOUNG): Order, please. I recognize the hon.

member for Bonavista North, and I cannot hear him from the Table.

3728



April 20, 1978 Tape 1323 (Night) PK - 2

MR. CROSS: I realize that there are quite a number of speakers
who would Tike to speak to this debate tonight, but certainly I have a
few remarks that I would like to make. Before I start I would

like to say that I am not going to attack personalities, but for

a few minutes I am going to reminisce on the former resettlement

policy in Newfoundland. And T am going to go back to the Budget of
1969 for a few minutes to read a few excerpts and then I am going to try
and relate what the resettlement meant to me because I did live in
communities that did certainly suffer great harm as a result of the

resettlement policy, not only communities.but people.

MR. CALLAN Not in Bonavista North.

MR. CROSS: Yes.

MR. CALLAN: No way*

MR. CROSS: Yes,in Bonavista North.

Looking through the Budget of 1969-I am going
to read a few excerpts from it~ I will quote in my speaking, "We
might as well face the fact without reluctance or fear, Mr. Speaker;
there has got to be a very great reduction in the number of settlements
in the Province, and there has got to be a great movement of relocation
of popuiation, ana there has got to be a great development of centralization
of population into a drastically reduced number of places."
Then a 1ittle further on in the Budget Speech
of that year there is a part of another paragraph that I want to read,
It says, "The very fact of that movement”-thinking of resettlement of
course - "The fact of new house construction, the fact of extension
and expansion in the larger cities of population and all of the incidentials
appertaining to such movement would have themselves create a great
stir in the economy of the Province." So apparently back in 1969
we were going to build the economy of Newfoundland on resettlement,
ki1l some to improve others.
Certainlv a Tittle further on in this

Budget debatesand I read again, it says;
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R, CROSS: My, Speaker, 1f I may summarize
this aspect of my remarks I would say that in all probability
in the next ten to twenty years the whole of the population
of our Province will be found to be living voluntarily in
a total of a very few 1f any more than 200 different cities,
towns and settlements.”

"It is entirely likely that
500,000 of our population will be fourd in no more than three

dozen different places."

So certainly looking at that, the

rural Newfoundland, as we know it today, as we lkmew it in the
past, I do not think it would be with us, But certainly in the
North end, trueythe hon, member for Terra Nova (Mr. Lush) when
he spoke just now said some people moved into Gambo from

various areas in the community. That is true. And I am not
going to say anything to belittle the community of Gambo and

the people who moved into Gambo from the other parts of Bonavista
North were good people and I am sure they ara making a great
contribution in the community of Gambo.

But in the North end of my district,
from 1966 onward, and just for a minute I will go back to Greenspond
again, but in 1966, '67, '68, '69 these four years I was a teacher
in that community and it was during these years that the community
began to die., The people began to move out. But it was pathetic
and certainly would almost hreak your heart to see how people
felt about leaving that old, historic community and at this
aoint in time in our history it would enlighten your heart to
see the peonle moving back.

We are saying, and it has been said
from the other side of the House. that the neople who moved away
from the island communities, or the small communities, would they

o hack now?

=)
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P, CROSS: I would say yes for tie sinple

reason -

¥R, FLIGHT: Cc not be talkirg so ignerant.
Cro8s - for tae simple reason that three

pupils whom I taugiat, hard working and industrious young men,
who did get tiueir education, and who got throuel in a little
school, macde their mark, passed im honours, geoes on to

trade school. One young man foresook a salary of $25,000, this

is the gospel truth, and Jecided he was going to go back where

ue wanted to live. Is there anything wrong with being allowed

to live vhere you want to live? Going vack to go into the
fishery, three in fact buying a longliner between them, going
back,foresaking good jobs and is going to make - and I say

to some of the experienced people, experienced fishermen in
Zonavista North, those voumg mensdedicated to whac they are
doing, will be prime fishermen and the man who beats them in
hauling the fish from the water will have to get up early.

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Hear, hear!

MR. CROSS: Certainly there was an attitude

in the lower ends and the thing is it is the policy, it is the
resettlement policy, there was a policy possibly but I cannot

say that there was a plan. I cammot say there was a plan for
resettlement because while I taught in Greenspond my home was in
Badger's Quay. I am not ashamed of having taught in Creenspond.
I am not ashamed of my record as a teacher in Greemspond. It will
stand with anyone's. But there was a policy with no plan, because
there were people moving away from Greemspond to move into
Dadger's Quay, to move into Wesleyville, to go to Gambo and other

communities, to Glovertown from Bonavista North, true, They moved
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MR. CROSS: out and away, but the
communities that they were moving into the people were
moving out. From Greenspond to Badger's Quay, from
Badger's Quay to St. John's, Gambc and so on,and so the
story goes. So there was no plan there.

Six years ago in Greenspond
there were houses barred up, the bar was on the door.

The ones that were not torn down are occupied again now

and last year there were four new homes constructed, the
community living again. But in the North end of the
district the bar was on a good many doors in 1966 up to
1970 but now all of those homes are occupied again and

how many dozen built? So I am saying we have begun to

live again. This is the point I want to make; we have
begun to live again.

SOME HON. MEMRERS: Hear, hear!

MR. CROSS: I believe it. There is an air
of optimism in the district, and certainly it is the new
dollar that counts in this respect. If you leave a job
where you are not producing anything tc go and produce a
new dollar,like the three young lads from my district, they
will be making a greater contribution. As a result the
dollars will be there. There have been small loans, there
have been small grants for blueberry cleaning in the centre
of the district.

The smoke house: The hon.
member for Placentia spoke this afternoon of the hundreds of
smoke houses in New Brunswick. The old bait depot in the
community of Greenspond was turned into a smoke house. Last
year - only three little jobs - but last year that smoke
house turned a profit. There was a fish plant one time in
that community but, and this is the truth, shortly after
the people began to move away - "We cannot leave the fish
plant there they might think it will open again." So what

did they do? - "Sell the fish plant for a dollar and have it
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MR. CROSS: torn down. There will be no
more fish processed in Greenspond.n

There was an ice making machine
there. Thank God'! there is going to be ancther machine
put back there this year. So there is a bit of optimism
on the go. ©Small loans are coming forth. We are
developing. There have been more new dollars produced in
the district of Bonavista North in the last six years than
were preduced in the last sixteen. Now, you might want to
take me on on that one, but I think and I feel T am pretty
close to knowing what I am talking about. I do not think
that Newfoundland will survive on a policy that is going to
bring about a great economic boom as a result of resettling
90 per cent of Newfoundland.

SOME HON MEMBERS: Hear, hear!

MR. SPEAKER(Young) : The hon. the member for Burin -
Placentia West.

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Hear, hear!

MR. CANNING: Mr. Chairman, I am in the happy
position, as I have said already in this session, to
represent an area where there is a fair amount of development
going on, where there is an awful lot of employment compared
to other areas of Newfoundland. I do not have too much to
ask for, not too much extra to ask for; all I have to do

is beg that what we have will be kept going.

Mr. Chairman, in all my length
of time here - I hate to be repeating it but it is a long
time, the longest time that ever any member has stood in
the House and claimed to be the representative of the same
district. I know the area of which I speak where I was
born and brought up and have represented for this length
of time. Mr. Chairman, of all the people who have come in
and out of this House, all the people I have heard speak in
the House, all the members, I have heard more ignorant

statements about resettlement in the last few sessions of
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MR. CANNING: this House than all the
statements I have heard in the last twenty-six years and
I do not understand it.

Mr. Chairman, why I do not

understand is this;
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1T, CANING: The one who just sat Jown said

e had teen a teacher. This has been thrown across by men who
have taught in the schools, who have taught our children. They
were good teachers,I suppose,for many subjects but I tell you
one thing that they did not teach them, if they went on like
they are going on now, they never kept their children informed
of current events. They could not have told them in the
schools what was happening when people left islands and
isolated settlements. They could not have told them why

those peonle came, why they had to leave. They could not have
encouraged education when they get up now and say it is a great
thing for them to go baclk.

Mr. Chairman, when I went into
that distriect - that district had fifty-three settlements, and
they gradually laft it. The people got money encugh to 3o or
some area to go to and that district was cut fifty per cent,
in half, as far as settlements were concerned, before anybody
mentioned resettlement, before ever the homn. Leader of the
Opposition ever came into this House. They were left there when
he was in school. And he was here while this was going on. But
I 111 tell the House one thing now, and I will back it as far
25 I am concerned, the hon. L;ader of the Opposition had no more
to do with anybody who left isolated settlements on the Southwest
Coast, in Fortune Bay or Placentia Bay, than he had to do with
the election of the last Pope, and he had nothing to do with

that. He had nothing to do with it, nothing to do with it.

AN HON. MEIBER: That is right.
MR. CALLAN: The Premier laughs, look.
R, CANNTING: I zm going to tell the hon. member

for Placentia East (Mr. Patterson), I have to tell him because
he mows what I am going to tell him is true, but he has gotten
up a few times and said something about the resettlement. He

d1d not say very much except he was not for it and we were awful

3735

a



taril 20,1978 Taze Mo. 132¢ wro-

—=l

[

Y. CANYTINC: faellows over here for havinn caused
that

When this big move got on in
Placentia Bay why they got away was any respounsible father or
nother livine on an island in Placentia Day would want to get
off it, if he had nhis children there. If le vanted ais children
to et medical attention, to get their teeth loolied after, their
aealth leohed after he would get off it if he could get off it
and come to the health centre. f he wanted them to take part
in sports, if they wanted to get to an arena, if they wanted to
see a1 television set, because they left before we had any
electricity out there, and further than that I will tell as I
70 along. They left after they got electricity and after they
g0t evervthing else practically, not the essentials. And I will
tell you ore thing there is - I weut through that distriect, I tmow
it better than anybody knows it, I know the history of it better
than anybedy lmows it and it is not written, so it will probably
die with me. I knew every settlement and every parent in that
district in the twenty-three years I was there. And I will tell
this House something tonight, there is not one mother, not one
single mother who left the cliffs of Paradise or the bleak end of
“arasheen or the bleak end of Harbour Buffitt, or anything else,
not ome single one of them would tell you today that they cid not
want to get off ityand they are glad they got off. And T will
tell you something else, I would challenge the House to do this.
Tt is not very far to Arnold's Cove, it is not very far, that
fine settlement of Arnold's Cove where some of the finest people
in Mewfoundland moved into, and I will glve vou Armold's Cove, I
bet any member of this House can get in iis car tomorrow morning
and go out and see the children from - not the childrem now because
some were children vhen they came in, very young, some were not
in school- you ask anybody between eighteen and thirty in Arnold's

Cova does he want to go back to Tack's Beach or does ne want to go
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1. CANNING: back to the head of Long Island,
ask the children. I saw them on television when they were
interviewed in Armold's Cove, and some members here probably
sav when the interviewer went frem ome to the other, the
children said, "No, wa are glad we left." And then they
named why they were there, because they had better schools,
they had electricity, and they named it one after the
other. No notilon of going back there.

But I will tell you one thing
and I will place my politics on this, any man who moves back
into Paradise, or into Merasheen, or into Isle Valen or into
Clattice Harbour, or into Davis Cove, and all the other places
there, any man of twenty or thirty years of age with children,
I would say he has no regard for his children, he has no
regard for his wife to take them out. Because first of all you
are not going to have a town there, you are not zoilng to have
central schools out there unless you put one on the middle
island, and if we have not got money emnough now to run the
buses ten milesyby God we will have a job to take tkem out of
Isle Valen, ten miles across the water and bring them to a
central high in Merasheen. And I will tell you something else,
e could not keep clergymen on those islands., Ther would not
come. We could not keep nurses. And in all the time I was out
there there was one Newfoundland nurse served in Placentla
Bay, one native Mewfoundlander that is what we got on “ferasheen
Teland or got in Bay Harbour or got in Petit Forte, or got inm
Tax Beach, one. if anvbodv wants to checl it., And I will tell vou
sue 1s one of the finest nurses, she is still living at - T do
not knowr her age now, she is over seventy years of age. She was
an PN at eichteen years of age, came off that island and eot in
here and she spent here lifetime there. A woman I =uppose who did
more for the health of the people than ary other living Hewfouadlander

today. She is inm the hon. member for Dellevue's (fr. Callzsn) district
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YR. P. CANNING: he would not go there. And if he went
there, by God he would not be much of a man to take his children out
there, take them away from higher schools and better advantages and
hospitals. He would not think much about his wife if he went out
there: he is only young yet and she might be going to have children.
AN HON. MEMBER: You never know, do you?

MR. P. CAFVING: Yo, you do not know. All right, joke
about it! They can joke about it. This 1s sense. This is facts. This
is history. Let us tell those children.

And another one - this is the beaut of all
this is now and this is true. The people whorclung on-, sometimes he was
a merchant over in the commer of the harbour with a little shop. He hung
on, he condemned Joe Smallwood for taking the people away, but, Mr.
Chairman, he had a family - had had a family - but they were not there.
They did not stay there. He had enough money to get them away, get them
to school and they went off. Fe was there by himself. Anvbody knows
the firms of Placentia Bay. I do not know if anybody here knows much

about them and I will npame them.

AN HON. MEMBER The Warehams.
MR. CANNING: The Warehams? Fine people, fine merchants

as they go, you know, I mean they lived well. When the fishermen did not
live well, they lived fine. They had plenty to eat and plenty to wear when
the fishermen were starving. That is a historical fact of Newfoundland. The
hon. Premier knows that, knows there was fish trucked out of my bay over into
the plant they were in whem 1t was about a quarter of a cent - or was 1t a

half cent he was giving them.then?

MR. 5. NEAPRY: No, a bottle of Coke for overtime.

¥R. P. CANNING Yes, these are facts.

PREMIER MOORES: Not true!

MR. CAINING: It is a fact. He paid three-quarters of a

cent for a pound of fresh fish.

PREMIER MOORES: That is not true!
MR. S. NEARY: No, straight facts.
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MR. P. CANVING When did he give three cents? Wken did he

give three cents in Harbour Crace?

PREMITR MOORES: When did you catch one last?
MR P. CANNING I caught one -
MR. S. NEARY He wrung more salt water out of socks tham

the hon.Premier sailed over.

MR. P. CANNING: I caught one not too long ago. I was thirty-
one years of age, I had come back from overseas and gone back to university
and I went fishing. That is how I got it. I went back to the school with
my hands too sore to write, and I expect I did more work between fourteen and
thirty than the Premier did in his life.

AN HON. MEMBER: That could be.

MR. P. CANNING He did not have to work. He was the son of

a merchant prince.

PREMIER MOORES: I was the son of a what?
MR. P. CANNING: A merchant prince, the merchant princes of

Newfoundland, that is just what they were. They were the only ores well off
in those places. I do not know how well off where he was brought up. I
know that people were not very well off because they never got enough.
for their fish.

And what is his history with the fish plant?
His father had it before him. A fine man they tell me - I did not know
him. @Breat man! What happened to the fish plant when he took it over?
Where did it go? I will tell. you where it went. It went down and down
and down and the Provinclal Government bought it off him and made a
millioniare out of him.
PREMIER. MOORES: No, they did not.
MR. P. CANMNINC: And then he went out and he stabhbed the fellow
who gave the million and half - whatever he got for it - in the back with it
MR. S. NEARY: Cannot take it!

MR. P. CANNING: Mr. Chairman, it is s#ckening, i1t is sickening

and it is pathetic. T never thought it would happen. You know, I had the

femaling when I came in here with teachers and lawyers an® doctors -
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MR. CANNING he had been Minister of Municipal Affairs and I
knew him, T knew him growing up. I guess he went through high school
in the main town of my district, and T will just tell you the story
about him because I do not understand him any more. When I look over

I do not think it is the same boy. He went to school in Marystown
with pretty good teachers. I am sure he would not deny that. And while
he was there,the family was moved to Toronto. His father went away

for an extra course. I do not know what grade he was in but all T

know was this that when he -
MR. PECKFORD: You are wromg. You are wrong. I went to Lewisporte,
Mr. Canning. Better get your facts straight.

MR. CANNING: I think you went to Marystown. You went to Toronto
with your father as a schoolboy, went to school up there. Is that not
right? 1Is it right or is it not? If it is not I will tell you
something else, some of his family went there, SOUWe of the boys
went theregand I am almost certain he did.
MR. MORGANT Some of your cousins,boy.
MR. CANNING: And when he went to the school - just listen to
this now about the Newfoundlander going to school from an outport,
a rural area. He went up to school and he was in class and some official
of the school came in the classroom, He had been taught when anybody
came in, the clergyman came in or the inspector came in, children
stood in their places, stood up as an act of respect to Wwhoever

came in, Like you do in your own home. If anybody has any
manners, someone comes to the door YU stand up. So it is pretty
good. But when this official, whoever it was, had gone out, the
teacher came to him and said, "Why did you stand up?" Either he
told him or one of his brothers, "Well,in the school I came from we
were taught to stand up when someone like this came in as a matter
of respect." Mr. Chairman, that teacher stood up before the
class and told them why he stood up, because he looked odd — but they
were not. They were good,civilized, partly educated - getting their
education - Newfoundlanders who came from Newfoundland,had those manmers,

and had that respect for anyone who came in the bouse and they stood
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MR. CANNING up. Mr. Chairman, I was told that by one of his
parents, S0 T do not think he can deny it. If it was not him it
was one of his three or four brothers, however many he has.
SOME HON. MEMBERS: Oh, oh!
MR. F. ROWE: Give it to them.
MR. CANNING: I do not know what they are laughing at over
there, if they are laughing at him because the boy was taken up
as an example in Toronto. Pehaps they would rather tell a joke Where
2 mistake was made or something to be laughed at, and it would be
a good Newfie joke. But I am telling where we could send them up in
Toronto in one of the better schools they went to, where they were
shown as an example. But my good God,I hope the teachers who taught
them will not come in here and hear them in here because I have
never heard anything like him in my life, the ridiculous statements
he makes. And the former administration you did it all, and we
are dolng everything. Heavens, he is an intelligent man. You know,
does he not know they are not doing anything or has something - you know,
has something gone wrong up here with wnat he thinks with? I mean does he
think that Newfoundland is going ahead today?

Mr. Chairman, I hope I have enough minutes
to finish this, because I went off on a tangent there. When I went
back to the district, Mr. Chairman, he was -
MR. FLIGHT: The truth hurts. You can see it in his face.
MR. CANNING: - when I went back there when I was elected,
when I came in here, when I moved out one of his friends - something
like him they tell me, I do not kmow - but they say that there were
three or four oil rigs on the Grand Banks and they were drilling
and drilling and my predecessor was talking and talking in here,
challenged the Supreme Courts and challenging everybody, and by and
by he disappeared. And then he stayed here. He is there now. As far
as I know there are ome or two — how many off the Labrador, two

?

or three of them, one or two ot something down there drilling! They
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MR. CANNING: are gone. They are not there. So I would say

between the two of them they talked away the oil rigs.

AN HON., MEMBER: Scared them off.
MR. CANNING: They are gone. They are not there. They scared
them off.

Now, Mr. Chairman, when I went back to the
district, as a good memberywhich I always did, I visit each place
and I went into the different councils, met with the different
councils and sat down with them. Mr. Chairman, what I found there,
if T had time to tell it - I will not. All I know is this,
that when I would mention the hon. minister's name - you know, did
not the minister do this? Did you see the minister? Did you
write the minister and what not?-.they did not want to hear of him,
they did not want to see him. And I could not get them to see the
minister and he yould not come in because he made a very good job
of putting the town council in Marystown in poverty, down to where
it almost - where they were going to sell the town hall this year
to come out of the hole. And he had a lot to do with it, that hom.
minister, I can assure you that =

MR. FLIGHT:
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MR. CANNING: in the towns was every placc deteriorating
the roads are pushed over on the small town councils to go to the
banks for loans for them. It never happened before. It never
happened.

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Oh, oh!

MR. CHATIRMAN: Order, please!
MR. CANNING: I was going to pay the hon. minister a compliment;

he has nothing to do with it. I hope he had nothing to do with -

MR. CHAIRMAN: Order, please! The hon. member has one more
minute.
MR. CANNING One more minute. I have to go back to him

because, you know, I have spared the hon. gentleman, Mr. Chairman,
I have spared him. I get along great with him. And my councils
were getting along fairly well with him,but I will tell you one
thing that if he can clear that mess in Burin up, clear that up
first - that is if he can do it, it is not your fault. It is his
fault, the other one.

Look, Mr. Chairman, we are fairly lucky
up there,I would say. First of all I have got a good member in
Ottawayand he is a darn good member for iewfoundland, for all
Newfoundland and I do mot think he gives us any more btut he
is pretty good. But it was the first time that I'found that
the hon. Don Jamieson got money for a town council and there
were so many irregularities,I am going to call *hem - if T say
the scandals perhaps I will be called to order, There were five
contractors went into Burin, coming up for elections, five of them
running into another, trying to get one ditch down through a mile
or a mile and a half of land,and they end up - And when T came in
I went to the minister time and time again, to the present minister,
after he took over, saying, "Is this cleared up yet? How much is it
overspent?” First it was $80,000,and I do not blame the minister,again,
I think he has it hard to get all those invoices.wherever they are.
MR. CHATRMAN: Order, please! I am sorry to interrupt but I am

afraid the hon. member's time has elapsed.
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MR. CANNING: Anyway, Mr. Chairman, I thank you very much
and all I say is that that is not cleared up yet

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Hear, hear!

MR. CHAIRMAN: The hon. member for Grand Falls

MR. LUNDRIGAN: Give me about five hours and I will get off

my chest what I have got on my chest after listening this afterncom
and tonight to the remarks across the way. It actually scares

me a little bit. I feel today that the people in Uganda would

feel more comfortable under the present regime than they would
under what I see across the way.

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Hear, hear!

MR. LUNDRIGAN: And T say to the Premier, I say to my colleagues,
that if we do not recognize it, it is about time we have recognized

that we have got a monumental responsibility, after what I have seen
across the way today, led by the Leader of the Opposition, led by

the member for Lewisporte (Mr. F. White), taking off and being

coached by the Leader of the Opposition - and I have not got time

to take off on him. T will get a chance. I will send out his remarks -
the member for LaPoile (Mr. Neary), and now the hon. gentleman, I cannot
remark about him, I think it would be unfair, the whole group of them.
Mr. Chairman, I am actually after listening and I have been here

now for three weeks, I came in two weeks late, looking for an alternative
government. I think the Premier and other colleagues will feel half
comfortable that there is an alternative govermment because

governments sometimes feel the stress and the strain. I have only got

two minutes, T just want to make one remark, Mr. Chairman, the hon.
gentleman who just spoke, the member this afternoon, talked about

the resettlement programme, talked about what happened. Would people go
back? Let us forget about going back, let us forget about the communities
that were resettled.

In 1972, on March 10th, when this government was
about to take office, the horn. member who is the Leader of the Opposition,
had in his pocket, had in his desk a list of - this was the list that he
was going to update -

MR. MORGAN: Table them. Make them known to the public.
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» 1slands.

Déadman’s Bay, Deep Bay, Fogo Island, Duntara,

Pox Harbour, Glovers Harbour, Greens Cove, Gréenspond, Grey River,

Hawkes' Bay, d Harbour, MacCallum, New MeTbournme, Plessantview;

, Port Hope Simpsen, St. Bremdan's,
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Mr. Lundriagan St. Jones Within, St. Shotts,Spillars Cove,
Stock Cove, Terra Nova, Tickle Cove, Tizzard's Habour, Twillingate,

Winter Brook, Bonavista South. That was 130 communities -

MR. MORGAM: You were going to wipe them out!

SOME _HON. MEMBERS: Oh, oh!

MR. LUNDRIGAN These were the communities, forget the ones that -
MR. NEARY On a point of order, Mr. Chairman.

MR. CHAIRMAN (DR. COLLINS): Order, please!

MR. LUNDRIGAN: - were resettled, the 500 communities that

were resettied.

MR. CHAIRMAN (DR. COLLINS): Order, please! A point of order has come up.

MR. LUNDRIGAN: They cannot take it!

MR, DINN: The truth will out!

MR. CHAIRMAN (DR COLLINS) A point of order

MR. NEARY: Mr. Chairman - /

SOME_HON. MEMBERS: Oh, oh!

MR. CHAIRMAN (DR. COLLINS) Order, please!

MR. NEARY: - think there was a ruling made, Sir,

in the hon. House,I think it was today- it has been made several times -
that anybody who quotes from a document has to table the document.

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Hear, hear:.

MR. NEARY: I presume, Sir, the hon. gentleman is going
to table that document?

MR. LUNDRIGAN: Mr. Chairman, on that point of order

MR. NEARY: I want a ruling from the Chairman

MR. CHAIRMAN (DR. COLLINS): Order, please'.

MR. LUNDRIGAN: Mr. Speaker, am I entitled to speak to

a point of order?

AN HON. MEMBER: Yes.

MR. CHAIRMAN (DR. COLLINS) The hon. member is speaking to the point
of order.

MR. LUNDRIGAN: Am I entitled to speak to a point of order?

Your Honour,I will table them starting right now, Amherst Cove Lower,
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Mr. Lundrigan: Amherst Cove Upper, Angel's Cove, Placentia Bay,
Bartlett Harbour, Beaumont South, Bellburn -

MR. CHAIRMAN: (DR. COLLINS): Order, please!

MR. LUNDRIGAN: - Benton, Big Brook, Birchy Cove, Black Duck, -
MR. CHAIRMAN (DR COLLINS): Order, please!

MR. LUNDRIGAN Boat Harbour.

MR. CHAIRMAN (DR. COLLINS): Order, please! I understand that

the documents will be tabled by the hon. member. I would point out

that the time is nearly 11:00 o'clock.

AN HON. MEMBER: It is 11:00 o'clock.
MR. CHAIRMAN: It is moved that the Committee rise, report

progress and ask Teave to sit again.
On motion that the Committee rise, report

progress and ask Teave to sit again, Mr. Speaker returned to the Chair

MR. SPEAKER: Order, please!

SOME_HON, MEMBERS: Oh, oh:

MR. SPEAKER: Order, please!

MR. CHAIRMAN (DR. COLLINS): Mr. Speaker, the Committee of Supply

have considered the matters to them referred and have made some progress
and ask leave to sit again.
MR. SPEAKER: The Chairman of the Committee reports
that they have considered the matters to them referred, have made progress
and asked Teave to sit again.

On motion report received and adopted,
Committee ordered to sit again on tomorrow.

THe hon. Minister of Justice.

MR. HICKMAN: Mr. Speaker, I move that the remaining orders of
the day do stand deferred, and that this House on its rising adjourn until
tomorrow, Friday at 10:00 o'clock and that this House do now adjourn,
MR. SPEAKER Before putting the motion presented by the hon,
Government House Leader there is a matter -

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Oh, oh!
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Mr. Speaker: Order, please! - pending from
6:00 o'clock and that was a point of order brought up, and the
substance of the point of order was that the hon. the member for
LaPoile (Mr. Neary) had made a allegation of illegality toward
another hon. member of -the House. I have the transcript.I will
read the few 1ines which occasioned this point of order, I will
read them first and then make the ruling after. "We also’know,
Sir, that the Minister of Industrial Development makes extensive use
of government aircraft not only within the Province but outside of the
Province. As I made reference to recently,in one case violated
the Criminal Code of Canada by transporting aboard the government
aircraft an {Jlegal weapon."”

I have spoken with the hon. member for LaPoile
and he tells me that the allegation of illegality,of an i1legal action
1s made not toward the hon. minister or not toward any member of the
House, but toward somebody who is not a member of the House. So I think
that disposes of the matter.

It has been moved that this House adjourn until
tomorrow, Friday, at 10:00 A.M. Those in favour "Aye", Contrary "Nay".
SOME HON. MEMBERS: "Aye",

MR. SPEAKER: In my opinion the "Ayes" have it. This

House stands adjourned until tomorrow,Friday,at 10:00 A.M.



